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1. Call to Order 

2. Establishment of Quorum 

3. Devotional and Prayer 

AGENDA 
Spring Advance Meeting 

March 31, 2019 

4. Appointment of Parliamentarian and Conduct of Meeting 

5. Adoption of Agenda 

6. Adoption of: Fall Advance Meeting Minutes· November 4, 2018, 
Membership Meeting Minutes January 16, 2019. 

7. Acceptance of Annual Reports 

8. Acceptance of Financial Statements 

9. Granting of Authority to Council to Appoint Delegates to Oasis 

10. Membership Report 

11. Update on 2019 Ministry Plan 

12. Report from Constitution and Bylaw Committee 

13. Adjournment 
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Minutes of the First Moncion United Baptist Church 
Fall Advance Meeting November 04, 2018 at 3:00 pm 

Devotion and prayer 
Pastor Richard opened the meeting with a devotion and prayer. 
Chair (Rupert Tingley) stated in the case of a close or paper vote that Russell, Harold and Gary would be 
assigned as Scrutineers. 

Appointment of Parliamentarian and conduct of the meeting 
Chair called on and introduced Parliamentarian Bruce Fitch and stated the meeting was to be conducted 
by Robert's Rules. 

Call to order 
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 3:31 pm. 

Establishment of Quorum 
Quorum was established with 60+ voting members present. 

Adoption of the agenda 
Russell Parker made a motion to accept the agenda. Seconded by Lynn Ritchie. Motion carried. 

Adoption of Business Meetings 
Marg Dryden made a motion to accept the February 04, 2018 Special Business Meeting minutes as written. 
Seconded by Alice Hutchinson. Motion carried. 
Gary Selig made a motion to accept the March 18, 2018 FBM Spring Advance Meeting minutes as written. 
Seconded by Marg McQuade. Motion carried. 
Marg Dryden made a motion to accept the October 25, 2017 Membership Business Meeting. Seconded by 
Sylvia Williston. Motion carried. 
Russell Parker made a motion to accept the November 22, 2017 Membership Business Meeting Minutes. 
Seconded by William Fitch. Motion carried. 

Update on Security Procedures 
Rev. Sandy Sutherland reported on the update of the Security Procedures including the installation of an 
AED and a First Aid kit. Inspector's suggestions and orders were brought into compliance. Fire alarms and 
the sprinkler system were checked and a lock box for the Fire Department was installed. Muster Stations 
were secured in compliance with the Evacuation Plan. The committee is working on adding extra fire 
extinguishers in the sanctuary with volunteers to operate them if required along with new signage and 
numbers for the doors for identification. Increased security for Sunday morning worship along with 
training for those positions are also on the agenda of the committee. Sandy concluded with a presentation 
of the evacuation plan. 
The Chair opened the floor but there were no questions or comments. 

Financial Update 
Linda Smith presented the financial update to the end of September 2018 and reported having revenue of 
$414,513 and expenses of $467,966. The Chair opened the floor for questions but there were no questions 
or comments. 

Ministry Plan Update for 2018 
Rev. Dr. Richard Jackson reported on the 2018 Ministry Plan update. He stated one of the goals was to 
seek to deepen the connection with FBM and the Korean congregation. He also reported on the FBM 
sponsored immigrant, Deborah and her arrival to Canada. He wants to have a recognition service for 
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Suzanne McGillivary in the near future. He concluded with his hope of continued growth for an 
intercultural congregation. The Chair opened the floor for questions. One member asked about the 
possibility of sponsoring another immigrant family now that Deborah is in Canada. Pastor Richard 
responded that the church's commitment to Deborah is for another year, but if anyone had any 
suggestions for a sponsor family after the current commitment has ended, to contact him. 
Pastor Sandy added that the Marriage course will be rescheduled due to an unforeseen circumstance. 
Regarding the Children Ministry, the program is designed for intentional teaching of discipleship to the 
kids. She stated they are searching for more volunteers to help with the ministry. She also wanted the 
parents and grandparents to know that the program starts at 10:30 AM which allows them to maximize 
the teaching then have the children join the service to experience the adult worship service. She reported 
that some new families arriving with children are having trouble finding the rooms and requested 
members to be cognizant and to guide and welcome new families. The Chair opened the floor for 
questions but there were no questions or comments. 

Ministry Plan for 2019 
Rev. Dr. Richard Jackson reported on the 2019 Ministry Plan. He stated the Korean Congregation has been 
with FBM for 3 years now but went through a split. He stated how impressed he was with Pastor Sam and 
how he dealt with the unfortunate situation. Although some members left, the congregation is now 
growing again and getting healthy. He reported that the one-year sponsorship commitment for Deborah is 
$210 a month and although an ask has not been issued, over $1000 has already been received. 
He hopes to help our congregation to become even more intercultural in 2019 and beyond. 
He praised his staff and stated that, although each of them has their own job description, they do many 
tasks that fall outside of their job descriptions. Consequently, Richard is going to be reviewing staff job 
descriptions to make sure we are making the most effective and efficient use of our resources. 
Rev. Sandy stated she was going to concentrate on the spiritual growth option and to have the Alpha 
course at noon time. She would like to strengthen the children's ministry and recognized the partnership 
with New Life Mission and Powerhouse. She also stated that the Miracles daycare and FBM are on the 
verge of a stronger partnership and becoming more engaged with introducing God to the children. The 
Chair opened the floor for questions but there were no questions or comments. 
Marg Ryan made a motion to accept the 2019 Ministry Plan as presented. Seconded by Lynn Ritchie. 
Motion carried. 
A member raised a concern about the youth program. As Pastor Andy was not present for the meeting, 
Pastor Richard explained that Andy was adding a new approach and connecting with the youth at their 
level by going to individual youth activities to show support and connect in that way. 

Budget for 2019 
Mike Robar! presented the Financial report. He stated the 2019 budget total was essentially the same as 
the 2018 budget with projected revenues of $655,998 and expenses of $655,998. Although some 
categories within the budget were reassigned, the total budget was balanced. The Chair opened the floor 
for questions. A member clarified in the Missions funds that the Sharing Way is no longer an entity within 
Canadian Baptist Missions. All donations used to go into a pot but due to CRA regulations all donations 
now must be designated to a category. 
Mike Robar! put forth the motion to accept the budget as presented. Seconded by Lynn Ritchie. Motion 
carried. 

Nominating Committee report 
Russell Parker presented the Nominating Committee report on behalf of Chris Burke. He reported the 
committee made continual communication until all seats were filled but asked for prayer as more seats 
will need to be filled as future seats will become vacant as terms end. The following seats have been 
declared approved by the Chair following no objection asks to the members: 
Council - Marg Dryden, Russell Parker. 
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Deacons - William Fitch, Carl Hicks, Mike Cudahy. 
Nominating Committee - Alice Hutchinson, Marven Smith. 
Miracles at First - Dawn Stultz, Christi Bisanti. 
A member clarified some date and term errors in the Miracles at First report. 

Appointment of Accountant for 2018 financial statement review 
Heather Burke made a motion fort the appointment of TC Jones as the accountant for the Financial 
Statement review. Seconded by Russell Parker. Motion carried. 
Adjournment. 
Russell Parker made a motion to adjourn at 4:30 pm. 

Closing Prayer 
Rev. Sandy Sutherland closed in prayer. 

Paul Short 
Secretary 
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Membership Business Meetings 

On January 17th
, 2018 the following individuals were voted into membership: Peter Reid- moved by Ralph 

Taylor. Seconded by Hazel Thompson. Lottie Reid- moved by David Evans. Seconded by Marg Ryan, Jeff 
Lutes Moved by Bill Curwin. Seconded by Lee O' Blenis, Faye Lutes- Moved by Sheila Thomas. Seconded by 
Karlene Cates. 

On June 6, 2018 the following individual was voted into membership: Michael Wilson Moved by Marshall 
Thompson. Seconded by David Evans. 

On July 4, 2018 the following individual was voted into membership: Gordon Worth- Moved by Marshall 
Thompson. Seconded by Rupert Tingley. 

On October 17, 2018 the following individual was voted into membership: Bob Price-Moved by Lee 
O'Blenis. Seconded by Hazel Thompson. 

5 



NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT 

The Council 

The Council will consist of nine (9) elected persons both male and female, nineteen (19) years or older 
drawn from the membership of the Church. One of the elected members must be nominated from the 
Deacons. 

2019: 

Year of 

Members Service Term Name 

1 pt year Jan. 1, 2019 - Dec. 31, 2022 Margaret l )ryden 

2 pt year Jan. 1, 2019 - Dec. 31, 2022 Russell Parker 

3 2nd year Jan 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2021 Cody Guitard 
-·-·---· 

4 2'' year Jan 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2021 Lynn Ritchie 

5 3rd year Jan 1, 2017 - Dec 31, 2020 Rupert Tingley 

6 3rd year Jan 1, 2017 - Dec 31, 2020 Paul Short 
--· -~- _., ____ 

7 4 th year Jan 1, 2016 -- Dec 31, 2019 Chris Burke 

8 4th year Jan 1, 2016 - Dec 31, 2019 Helena Evans 
-----

Sterling Johnson** 
9 Deacon Jan. 1, 2019 - Dec. 31, 2019 

-----·- -- --

** Deacon to be nominated by the Deacons will serve one year terms. Each term is renewable by 
Church vote as long as he or she serves as a Deacon. 
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DEACONS 

The Deacons will consist of twelve (12) persons, both male and female, nineteen (19) years of older, 
drawn from the membership of the Church. 

Oec1ovns I !meiiti: Bob MacQuade, Jack Proud, Rupert Tingley, Jessie Fitch, Ralph Taylor, Ellard Griffin, 
Roger Robar!. 

2019: 
·----~ 

Year of 

Members 
Service 

Tenn Name 
-

1 pt year Jan 1, 2019- Dec 31, 2022 \Villiam 1:itch 

_,., - --- -

2 pt year Jan 1, 2019 - Dec 31, 2022 l(arl I licks 

---· -- ·--·---····--·-·--.- --·- .. --·--··-----·--·-
3 1st year Jan 1, 2019 - Dec 31, 2022 t\lichad ( :udahy 

·-

4 2nd year Jan 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2021 Heather McKinnon 

----·---- ----- I---- --- --·- --· ---- ------· ·- ···---- -·---------~--
5 2nd year Jan 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2021 David Evans 

6 2nd year Jan 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2021 John Milson 

-- --- -· --
7 3rd year Jan 1, 2017 .. Dec 31, 2020 l ,e(_' < )'Bknis 

------
8 3rd year Jan 1, 2017 .. Dec 31, 2020 Sterling Johnson 

--·--
9 3rd year Jan 1, 2017 - Dec 31, 2020 Moses Lombeh 

------- - -

10 4 th year Jan 1, 2016 - Dec 31, 2019 John Matson 

-- ... -- -- ----·- -·-------

11 4 th year Jan 1, 2016 -- Dec 31, 2019 Rick Thomas 

-----------. 
12 4 th year Jan 1, 2016 -- Dec 31, 2019 Laura Selig 

---- . ___ ,_ - - - - --------
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NOMINATING COMMITTEE 

The Nominating Committee will consist of eight (8) elected members of the Church, as well as one (1) 
member of the board, who will serve as chair, and one (1) deacon. 

2019 Committee: 

Year of 

Members Service Term Name 

1 pt year Jan 1, 2019 - Dec 31, 2022* Alice I lutchinson 

2 pt year Jan 1, 2019 - Dec 31, 2022* t\farvin Smith 

3 2"d year Jan 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2021 Russell Parker 

4 2"' year Jan 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2021 Bill Curwin 

5 3rd year Jan 1, 2017 - Dec 31, 2020 Gordon Locke 

---~ 

6 3'' year Jan 1, 2017 - Dec 31, 2020 Sheila Thomas 
--- ..... . --- --- --

7 4 th year Jan 1, 2016 - Dec 31, 2019 Heather MacKinnon 

-~-
8 4 th year Jan 1, 2016 - Dec 31, 2019 Marg Dryden 

----·---·---- -- ------ -------- -

Council 
Chris Burke 

9 member** Beginning Jan 1, 2019 

Sterling Johnson 
10 Deacon*** Beginning Jan 1, 2019 

·--- ----- ------

•• Board member to be nominated by the Board will serve one year terms. Each term is renewable by 
Church vote as long as he or she serves as a Board member. 

*** Deacon to be nominated by the Deacons will serve one year terms. Each term is renewable by 
Church vote as long as he or she serves as a Deacon. 
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MIRACLES AT FIRST CHILD CARE CENTRE BOARD 

From the new Constitution and By-Laws: 
Members must be nineteen (19) years or older. The board of the First Moncton United Baptist Child Care 
Centre Inc. will have twelve (12) directors, appointed as follows: 

Six (6) Church members. 

One (1) each from the Church board and the deacons. 

Four (4) members appointed by the Board of the First Baptist Childcare Center Inc., three (3) of 
which must be parents of the children, and one (1) other interested person from within or without 
the Church. 

2019 Board: ----~ ---·----

Church Term and 
Members Y car of Service Two Terms Names 

' ~- ·--·-- - ----------
µ E 1 1st year Jan 1, 2019 - Dec 31, 2024 Dawn Stultz h h 

i: " 
~- -- -- -··-· b ------··--·- -----------

2 2nd year Jan 1, 2019 - Dec 31, 2024 Christi Bisanti 
- ---- --

3,4 3rd year Jan 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2023 Nancy Fitch 
---· -

'D E 5 C 1st year Jan 1, 2017 - Dec 31, 2021 Alison ToczKo u h 
CJ ,., b ---- - ----· --

(/) 

6 2nd year Jan 1, 2015 ... Dec 31, 2020 Heather Burke 
I ---- - -

-- 3rd year Jan 1, 2014 - Dec 31, 2019 Alice Hutchinson 
---· ----- -

Marg Dryden 
7 Council member* Beginning Jan 1, 2019 

-- ----- ··--·-

Bill Fitch 
8 Deacon** Beginning Jan 1, 2019 

- - --------------------. ---------- ·-- ------ - - ----
1 Board member to be nominated by the Board will serve one year terms. Each term is renewable by 

Church vote as long as he or she serves as a Board member. 
** Deacon to be nominated by the Deacons will serve one year terms. Each term is renewable by Church 

vote as long as he or she serves as a Deacon. 
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MIRACLES AT FIRST CHILD CARE CENTRE BOARD (Continued) 

(Provided for information purposes only) 

2019 Board: 

Board Term and Year 
Appointees of Service Two Terms Names 

E 1, 2 1st year Jan 1, 2019 - Dec 31, 2024 Jessica Whalen (parent) ... ... u: " f-< 

-- 2nd year Jan 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2023 
~------ ------

3 3rd year Jan 1, 2017 -- Dec 31, 2022 Dianne Churchill (Interested Person) 
Shawn McMahon (Parent) 

" E 4 C: 1st year Jan 1, 2016 - Dec 31, 2021 0 ... 
u u 

~-
,_ __________ 

'-' f-< VJ 

-- 2nd year Jan 1, 2015 - Dec 31, 2020 --
----· . --·- ··-- . ----- - - - ---------------·-- -----------

-- 3rd year Jan 1, 2014 - Dec 31, 2019 --
---- ----- -----

Other Board Members by virtue of position (without a vote): 

-Vanessa Golding (Executive Director) 

-Rev. Sandy Sutherland (designated member of pastoral staff) 
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COUNCIL OF FIRST MONCTON UNITED BAPTIST CHURCH 

The Council members in 2018 were Richard Jackson, Rupert Tingley, Lynn Ritchie, Paul Short, Chris Burke, 
Adriana Campbell, Susan Crouse, Helena Evans, Cody Guitard and Lee O'Blenis assigned from the Deacons. 

The Council was organized as follows: 

Chair- Rupert Tingley, Vice Chair- Lynn Ritchie, Secretary- Paul Short, Past Chair- Susan Crouse all serving 
as Council Executive. Adriana Campbell represented the Council for Daycare. 

The Constitutional amendments made at the March Spring Advance meeting clarified any ambiguity in the 
Constitution. The Quorum requirements were reduced for meetings to admit members which was helpful 
in organizing the meetings. Further changes to the Constitution will be recommended to the 2019 Spring 
Advance meeting by Lynn Ritchie, Chair of the Constitution review Committee this year. 

We held seven meetings during the year. Many matters were discussed and/or approved at meetings 
including organizing the Spring and Fall Advance Congregational meetings, Senior Pastor reports, review of 
monthly financial results, progress on Ministry Plan, 2019 Budget and others. Marriage and Funeral 
Policies were approved, and a Policy Book is being prepared. The Risk Management Sub-Committee, 
chaired by Cody Guitard, assisted by Sandy Sutherland and a team of Church members presented plans to 
be implemented for the safety of those attending services in the Church. As mentioned in last years 
report, the Council started reporting to the Congregation on the Council updates. The first one was in a 
Sunday Bulletin January 28 th

, 2018 and, was a joint report of Council and Staff. 

Council members give a lot of time to Council affairs, including interacting with members regarding Church 
events, over and above formal meetings. I thank the Council members for their support during the year. 

Rupert Tingley, Chair 2018 
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Deacons Annual Report 2018 

The Deacon Board for 2018 was comprised of the following members: Heather McKinnon, David Evans, 
John Milson, Lee O'Blenis, Sterling Johnson, Moses Lombeh, John Matson, Rick Thomas, Laura Selig, 
Ralph Taylor, Joy Martel and Arthur Lam. 

The Deacon Board is a liaison between the congregation and the pastoral staff, in this capacity, a "Care 
List" was developed by Pastor Sandy and distributed to the Deacons. This list assisted the deacons in their 
efforts to keep in touch with the congregation. This is a major function of the Deacons as we strive to be a 
community here at First Baptist. The deacons are also responsible for interviewing new prospective 
members as they seek membership into the Church. 

In 2018, the deacons started an initiative to provide a trip to Israel for Pastor Richard in appreciation for 
the 16 years of service at First Baptist Moncton. The educational trip will be taken in the spring of 2019. 

The board is tasked with the responsibility of preparing and serving of the elements for the Communion 
each month as well as the clean up afterwards. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the 2018 Deacons Board for their help and support 
throughout this year. I appreciated their hard work and wise counsel. In closing, a special thank you to 
our retiring deacons, Joy Martel and Ralph Taylor. It has been an honour and privilege serving as a deacon 
and working with such wonderful and faithful members. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Arthur Lam 

Chair of the Deacons 
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SENIOR PASTOR'S 2018 ANNUAL REPORT 

As I sat down to pen these few words, I looked back at some of the other annual reports that I have 
written over the years. As I read these reports, I noticed a common theme weaving its way through each 
page-change. Every year that I have been senior pastor of this congregation has brought with it change. 
Some of the change has been most welcomed and celebrated. For instance, we are much more of an 
international congregation today than we were three years ago, or two years ago, or one year ago. Each 
year more internationals are joining our church family which is enriching our worship and fellowship 
tremendously. This was never more in evidence than over the Christmas holidays. In the middle of 
December, we hosted 250 Filipinos in our gym! On December 29, we had a gym full of people from the 
Brazilian Association fellowshipping together. The next day, December 30, we baptized a Canadian and 
two Africans. The following night, December 31, we had an African worship band leading worship in the 
gym while our Korean congregation was worshiping in the parlour. On January 6, 2019, the Russian 
Association hosted a children's Russian Christmas event in our gym. One African gentleman commented 
to me that he couldn't believe how international our church is! 

Some of the changes we experienced were in the form of farewells. We were saddened when Suzanne 
McGillivary announced her retirement as church organist but are grateful for her years of service. Her 
commitment to leading us in worship and praising God through her musical gifts will remain as a lasting 
tribute to her. It was a well-deserved honour when Suzanne was named the first-ever organist emeritus of 
First Baptist Church. As well, we are grateful to Debbie Lam who is assisting us in the role of interim 
organist until a permanent replacement is hired. 

Janet Perry resigned as director of Miracles at First in order to pursue other career opportunities. We are 
grateful for Janet's years of service and for her leadership during a time of transition. 

The associate pastor of our Korean congregation, Abraham Kwon, accepted a call to a Korean congregation 
in Calgary. Abraham has been a joy to work with and will be missed! On his last Sunday with us, we 
commissioned him and his family to their new ministry. 

We commissioned Laura Kelly as she was preparing to move to Tanzania to work with children. Laura 
arrived safely in Tanzania and, at the time of this writing, was doing language training in Swahili. 

Some of the changes have been in the form of hellos. We were excited to welcome Vanessa Golding as 
the new director of Miracles at First. Her professionalism, humour, and good nature have endeared her to 
the staff and made her a joy to work with. 

Too, we were thrilled when Deborah Mulongo was FINALLY approved to join her family in Moncion. 
Deborah is a young, 19-year-old woman from the Democratic Republic of Congo. She arrived in Moncton 
in September as the culmination of a three-year-long immigration process. We are grateful to Yvette 
Jackson and Naomi Crook for their perseverance through this process. We will be fulfilling our sponsorship 
obligations to Deborah until November. 

Speaking of change, it is not our church alone that is experiencing change. Downtown Moncion appears 
to be undergoing a transformation that will have consequences for First Baptist's outreach ministries. The 
transformation has several facets to it: 

• Millennia ls are migrating back to downtown Moncton. They like the convenience and energy of 
living in the downtown and are willing to pay higher rents for this convenience. Consequently, a 
lot of apartments are being refurbished and rented at a much higher cost, which is causing poorer 
people to be pushed out of the downtown area. 
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• With the construction of the new Convention Center, parking is at a premium. Consequently, low-
income housing is being torn down to make room for parking lots. 

• The city is refurbishing the downtown area to make it more attractive to people as a destination 
spot both as a residence and as an entertainment hub. 

These facts together mean that our local demographic is changing. In order to remain relevant to our 
community, it is vital that First Baptist take these demographic shifts into consideration as we consider 
future outreach strategies. 

Other significant events in the life of our congregation include: 

In February, we voted to approve a Redefining Sunday vision strategy budget. We believe this strategy, 
which involves simultaneous worship services, will enable us to pursue discipleship and fellowship 
opportunities both before and after our worship hour when people are already in church. The foundation 
laid by this strategy is being built on through The Just Movement, which involves three prongs: Just Bring 
Someone, Just Do Something, and Just Be Somewhere. We look forward to developing The Just Movement 
in 2019. 

As a congregation, we have continued and deepened our relationship with Miracles at First. We were 
thrilled when The Department of Education and Early Childhood Development (EECD) informed Miracles 
that they had been approved to become a New Brunswick Early Learning Centre. As a designated centre, 
Miracles will receive three grants: 

1. An Operational Grant to support the viability of the centre and to support us in improving the overall 
quality of all preschool spaces (0-5 years). The first month of Operational Grant funding will be $4693.50. 

2. A Quality Improvement Grant in the amount of $10,800.00. 

3. A one-time Transitional Funding Grant in the amount of $4693.50 to assist the centre with the 
transition to the new Designated Centre - Parent Subsidy Program. 

In June, we celebrated our congregation's 190th anniversary. The executive minister of our convention 
and a member of our congregation, Peter Reid, preached a challenging and inspirational message. 

Gary and Laura Selig led a short-term mission trip to Bolivia in the fall. This team was involved in projects 
oriented towards local church ministries. As well, they were involved in community projects, including the 
Chagas disease program and a prison kids' ministry. Members of the team included our own Paige Lean as 
well as four people from Fredericton and one from PEI. 

As a simple act of service to our neighbourhood, we built a prayer box that we placed on the front lawn of 
our church. Community people write out and deposit prayer requests in the box that my team and I pray 
over. It has been a simple yet meaningful way for our church to connect with the hundreds of people who 
walk past our church every day. 

As a congregation, we rejoiced when our own Sandy Sutherland was named one of the recipients of the 
Crandall University Distinguished Alumni Award. This was a well-deserved honour for someone who has 
contributed immensely to our convention over many years. 

In the fall, I was asked by the Vice-President for Academic Affairs of Crandall University, Jon Olhauser, to 
teach a course at Crandall University. I taught a course I had created and taught in past years entitled, The 
Church in Scripture and Society. 
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Allow me to add that God is moving in our CBAC convention as well. CBAC has developed a goal of seeing 
3000 baptisms in one year by 2025. And they're looking for 3000 people to pray for the 3000 baptisms. 
To help accomplish this goal, CBAC is looking to grow 65 new congregations, 300 mission-edge 
neighbourhood churches, and 75 emerging pastor-leaders (150 new pastor-leaders in total). Exciting days 
in which to be an Atlantic Baptist! 

With all this said, how can I best sum up 2018? Perhaps with the phrase, GOD IS FAITHFUL! God is indeed 
moving in our midst and people are noticing. In the spring, I was invited by Harry Gardner, Principal of 
Acadia Divinity College, to come to Acadia and speak at one of his classes. He wanted his class to hear 
about the journey First Baptist has been on over the past fifteen years with the development of a second 
service, a new governance model, a fresh vision statement, and our Redefining Sunday vision strategy. 
People around the convention are taking notice of what is happening at First Baptist! I have even been 
told that some of the folks at Alpha have taken an interest in what is happening at First. God is faithful 
indeed! 

On a personal note, Yvette and I realized afresh how wonderful it is to be part of a loving and supportive 
church family during difficult times. The death of my mother in April, though not unexpected, was a 
difficult time for my family and me. Your prayers, cards, and expressions of sympathy sustained us 
through this season of sorrow. Thank you so much for being there for us and for making a very difficult 
time a little easier. 

Before I close, I would be remiss if I did not express my deepest gratitude to Sandy Sutherland, Andy Scott, 
John Ferguson, Sonia Miller, Vanessa Golding, Catherine Bartlett, Debbie Lam, John Cowan, Randy Leet, Scott 
Robinson, and Stanislav Olkinitskiy. Their commitment to God, their boundless energy and enthusiasm, and 
their unfailing humour have made them a joy to work with. 

Of course, a church staff can do very little without the support and involvement of a committed laity. I want to 
express my gratitude to each of you who has given so willingly and joyfully of your time, talents, and treasures 
to the ministries of our church. Your commitment and dedication are both an inspiration and an 
encouragement! 

Respectfully submitted, 

Richard Jackson 
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Contemporary Worship Gathering 

Not sure if you noticed but there might have been a few changes this past year! 

Merriam-Webster provides the following definition for the term redefining: to re-examine or re-evaluate 
especially with the view to change. Well, Sunday morning at First saw some changes implemented and 
some which will continue to be implemented through our "Redefining Sunday" vision. Some of our biggest 
changes on Sunday morning came to our Contemporary Gathering. 

As a church looking to move forward, these Sunday morning changes for the Contemporary Gathering 
basically came in a two-fold way. 

First, the Contemporary Gathering moved spaces. 

The Contemporary Gathering began over fifteen years ago when it all started in the gym with wonderful 
vision of relevancy and adaptability. We realized that the gym truly offered and offers the best area for 
vision, adaptation, flexibility, and growth for the Contemporary Gathering. So, full-circle, the 
Contemporary Gathering moved back to the gym in April 2018. 

Oh, you might have also noticed that the name of this gathering changed from "The Bridge" to the 
"Contemporary Gathering". This was done to more effectively identify our two Sunday morning worship 
options, Traditional and Contemporary, without having to provide further words of identification for our 
contemporary option. Basically, to make it easier for people to better understand the choices for worship 
and community they have on Sunday morning at First. 

The move back to the gym has provided multiple opportunities to create a different feeling, look, and 
variation for our Contemporary Gathering. Cafe Corner, Children's Corner, tables to sit at, round tables for 
different community meal times before or after, various ways to do communion, set changes to the stage, 
lighting changes to the stage and overall room, "Stay & Chat" potluck lunch times to get to know each 
other better, etc. We're not finished with doing things in different ways, it will just take time, effort, and 
also involving more people to help create a growing and changing sense of community on Sunday 
morning. 

We still have more to do as we continue to adapt and change the Contemporary Gathering and overall 
Sunday morning to the needs of our culture and the needs of growing our community at First (i.e. painting; 
clear signage; a few renovations to hallways, Connection area, the gym area; and more). 

Second, both the Contemporary & Traditional Gatherings moved time. 

Prior to our time change the Contemporary Gathering met at 9:15am and the Traditional at 11am. During 
our time of "redefining" the move of the Contemporary Gathering back to the gym also enabled us to run 
both gatherings at a better Sunday morning time. Crazy us, we also took the step to run them both at the 
same time! So, on Easter of 2018 both gatherings changed to the starting time of 10:30am. 

Running at the same time? Craziness! Has it always worked perfectly? No. Has it meant that Richard and 
other speakers are getting their exercise moving from one gathering to the other? Yes. Has it been 
effective overall? Absolutely, yes! 

The message happens earlier in the Contemporary Gathering. There are two different speakers in the 
Contemporary and Traditional Gatherings. One speaker speaking in the Traditional while another speaks in 
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the Contemporary ... and then they switch the following week. Richard teaching on pre-recorded video with 
a live facilitator engaging people with interactive questions at the Contemporary Gathering. These are just 
some of the ways we have been approaching our teaching time since redefining Sunday mornings at First. 

Have we seen new people come to our Contemporary Gathering? We most definitely have, and we are 
excited to see them and connect with them! Do we still need to connect better? Yes, we do, but we 
continue to keep community and connection in front of what we do on Sunday mornings. 

There are definitely some "thank yous" to give out. In general, a huge thank you to anyone who helped out 
with the various aspects of our "Redefining" vision. Thank you to the people who serve on our Connection 
Teams. Thank you to the wonderful people who lead us in prayer and help out leading other aspects of our 
Contemporary Gathering on Sunday morning. Thank you to those who have taken part in the various 
creative aspects of our gathering (i.e. dramas, readings, videos, etc.). Thank you to Katie Clements for 
running our weekly Sunday morning Cafe ministry (she is always accepting any offers to join the team). 
Thank you to the Worship & Tech Teams for their weekly commitment to lead us in worship. 

This might sound like some movie star accepting an Oscar and throwing out the words, "thank you to God 
and my Lord, Jesus Christ", but as the people of God's Church at First Moncion, we need to be continually 
thankful that God leads us in the present and is also leading us to the future. We will always need to seek 
Him and His guidance in all we do as a church as we try to faithfully serve Him from Sunday morning to 
Sunday morning. 

Personally, I'm excited about what we can do on Sunday mornings. I'm excited about the opportunities of 
change, adaptation, and growth we need to attain. But what also needs to continue to happen is that we 
all need to be more passionate and excited about the change and rejuvenation God can bring to us and to 
His church at First Moncion moving forward. And then, we serve Him with rejuvenated excitement. 

John Ferguson 

Worship Team 

Worship teams are old! Just a second, let me define what I mean. 

What I'm referring to is the fact that worship teams have existed for centuries, all the way back to Old 
Testament times, the Temple, and David. 

Here's an example ... 

Now these are those whom David appointed over the service of song in the house of the LORD, after the 
ark rested there. They ministered with song before the tabernacle of the tent of meeting, until Solomon had 
built the house of the LORD in Jerusalem; and they served in their office according to their order. 
1 Chronicles 6:31-47 

There are also other Old Testament references to groups of musicians playing various instruments in the 
house of the Lord - trumpets, stringed instruments, drums, and more (i.e. 2 Chronicles 5:12-13). 
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The Worship Team at First joins a long-standing team of people using their gifts and talents to lead the 
church and people of God in worshipping Him. As a church, as attendees of our Contemporary Gathering, 
we are thankful for what everyone on our Worship Team brings to our worship every Sunday morning. 

It was a year of change for the Worship Team at First. With the move from the Sanctuary to the gym as the 
Contemporary Gathering area, the worship team basically moved to a new home. The gym stage was not 
the original place the worship team setup when the then "Bridge" started some 15 years ago but the gym 
stage was reclaimed and is now where the instruments and people of the worship team both practice and 
lead people in worship and in song. 

Not only was there a change in location and time of worship on Sunday morning but the worship team also 
had a change in rehearsal time -from Wednesday nights to Thursday. Was the change necessary? Yes, 
because of existing Wednesday night ministries the worship team was unable to practice in the gym. Will it 
stay on Thursday night? Maybe, maybe not. Picking a good time for busy people and involving new people 
to regularly rehearse is not always easy. We will continue to go with the flow and adjust where needed. 

Very excited to see the worship team grow this past year. We have new members and are still looking to 
have more! 

We did also lose some key worship team members this past year. Thank you to Wes and Janet Perry who 
faithfully served on the worship team for years. Wes accepted a position at Sunny Brae Baptist Church as 
leader of their worship team and worship service. We miss them but also wish them the best in their 
ministry. 

Learning an instrument? Do you sing? Interested in becoming part of a team where you can use your 
musical gifts? Consider joining the worship team! Connect with John Ferguson 
(iohn.ferguson@firstmoncton.com) and start the journey of using those gifts on a regular basis. 

John Ferguson 
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Adult Bells 

What a privilege it is to be part of the handbell ministry at First Moncton! In 2018 we had the opportunity 
to play in services including Easter and Thanksgiving as well as many Christmas services. Duet and solo 
ringing were also part of our offerings as well as the opportunity for a trip for some duet ringing at 
Brunswick Street Baptist Church in Fredericton. 

As a choir we work to make our music a worshipful part of every service. We hope that those who heard 
us were moved and found themselves drawn closer to God. 

Many thanks to those who filled in this year while some were unable to take part in all services. My 
deepest gratitude to Janice Kelly for directing the choir for the Christmas season so that I could be away 
and welcome two new little members of our family. 

Next year we hope to start plans on "Ring in the Spring 2020" that will take place at First. I pray that 2019 
will see many opportunities for our bell choir to share our passion for ringing and our love for God. 

In Christ 

Peggy Mullin 
Director 

Members: 
Sheila Thomas 
Heather Steeves 
Debbie Lam 
Carol Murray 
Heather Burke 
Vickie Melanson 
Lynn Armstrong 
Karen Mouris 
Catherine Bartlett 
Chris Burke 
Wendy Sullivan 
Alison Toczko 

Much appreciated subs: 
Judi Parker 
Linda Rice 
Sandra Clouston 
Elizabeth McLeod 
Janice Kelly (director) 
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JuBELLation 

What an amazing group of new ringers (well, not so new anymore!) I get to work with every 
Wednesday!!! Their willingness to work and learn is a joy! 

Our numbers fluctuated from the beginning of the year to our start up in September, but the enthusiasm 
never wavered. Our numbers may be down, but the ringers have now been at it for several years and I am 
challenging them with some new and exciting pieces and they are rising to the challenge. 

There may be new ringers joining us in 2019 and I look forward to showing them just how much fun bells 
can be. 

Learning and laughing as we go! 

Peggy Mullin 
Director 

Members: 
Sheila Thomas 
Sylvia Williston 
Judy Parker 
Justin Jackson 
Jessie Breau 
Karen Mouris 
Mercy Gagnon 
Russell Parker 
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Sanctuary Choir Annual Report 

The First Baptist Sanctuary Choir had the privilege to continue praising God throughout 2018. Through the 
faithful membership of our 25-35 voice choir we had the opportunity to sing for the Lord on Sunday 
mornings throughout the calendar year along with a number of special services. These included the Good 
Friday service, the Hanging of the Greens and our annual Candlelight service. 

This is a year that has brought some change, especially with the retirement of our long-time accompanist 
and organist, Suzanne McGillvary. For many years, her amazing abilities have helped our choir and 
congregation to experience God's love through music in amazing ways. Her retirement get-together with 
the congregation in late November 2018 was standing room only and goes to prove the love and 
appreciation that each of us has for her service over the years. 

Our leadership has been outstanding once again through all of 2018. Catherine Bartlett continues to lead 
our choir with a focus on the message that we deliver beyond the music. We have also been blessed by 
the contributions of Debbie Lam, who stepped in for the second half of 2018 after Suzanne's retirement to 
take on the role of interim accompanist. We praise God for the amazing abilities that these two have and 
which allows us to sing praise to Him from the loft every week. Jean Phillips is assuming the role of Choir 
President for the next two years so please pray for her as she takes over these duties. 

2019 will bring another group of changes as we complete our search for our new accompanist. Please 
continue to pray for God's work to be done within our church so that we can continue to provide the 
service for which we have been called. 

Lastly, I want to thank the congregation of First Baptist Church (including our pastors) for their love and 
support throughout the year. We know that many of you pray for us since we can feel it every week. 
Please know that it is our privilege to be part of the service every week and we look forward to continuing 
to serve in this way. Praise God! 

Chris Burke 

Outgoing Sanctuary Choir President 
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Traditional Worship Service Planning Team 
AnnuaIReport2018 

The Worship Planning Team met twice this year for discussion and planning .. 

Each member has his/her area of responsibility and fulfills their obligations on a weekly basis: selecting 
theme and preparing messages, scheduling speakers, choosing and preparing weekly anthems, scheduling 
guest musicians, practicing with soloists and musical groups, preparing worship music, choosing hymns, 
scheduling special music. We are all committed to crafting a meaningful worship experience that honours 
God and blesses the congregation. 

This year has had its challenges as we work out the kinks in the change to concurrent worship services. For 
the most part it is now working well. 

We had four Combined worship services this year including Thanksgiving and Anniversary. 

We are blessed at First Baptist to have so many gifted musicians who share those gifts with us: the Bell 
Choirs, the Young Musicians Choir and New Beginnings Choir, the Sanctuary Choir, the Korean Youth 
Ensemble and their Directors and many of you who minister with your gift of music, either vocal or 
instrumental, to enhance our worship experience each week .. 

The Worship Planning Team thanks you each sincerely and looks forward to continued blessings as you 
share your gifts in service to God and our congregation. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Olive Wade 
Team Leader 
Pastor Richard 
Catherine Bartlett 
Marvin Smith 
Suzanne McGillivary (Jan-June) 
Debbie Lam (Sept/Dec) 
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2018 USHER REPORT 

We are pleased to have Chaired the Usher Committee for the Year 2018. During this year, we have seen 
over 50 members of our Congregation participate as an Usher, Captain or a Lift Operator. The Captains 
have included: 

1. Bill Curwin 

2. Doug Wade 

3. Gordon Locke 

4. Bruce Peacock 

5. Les Dryden 

6. Bob McQuade 

7. Sterling Johnson 

8. Dave Williston 

9. Art Lam 

10. Ed Toczko 

11. Rick Thomas 

12. Jeff Land 

One of our areas of responsibility is assigning lift operators. We seem to have only a small pool of five 
trained and qualified operators to call upon. As well, the lift has proven both troublesome and 
problematic during the past year and has required servicing on a number of occasions. Over the past year 
we have participated in Emergency procedures protocol committee with a number of other members of 
the Church. We have had meetings with both the City of Moncion Fire Prevention Officer, as well as most 
recently with the Codiac RCMP Community Safety Officer. We have found these meetings and discussions 
to be very helpful in planning for any situations that we may be faced with in the future. One item in 
particular, we obtained six fire extinguishers from Brunswick Fyr and Safety for the Candlelight Service in 
December and they were each manned by a member of the Usher Committee during the actual service. 
We would like to thank all the Volunteers who assisted us in performing our duties during the past year 
and thank you for your service to First. 

Sincerely, 
Greg & Claudette Turner 
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Welcoming Committee 

The Welcoming Committee Provide greeters for the main entrance to the church building for both the 
contemporary and traditional Sunday morning services and other special services and events at the 
church. Their objective is to make all who enter feel at home and welcome. 

Those who participated in the Welcoming Committee for the traditional service this past year have 
included: 

Barnes, Katherine & Joan Mabee 
Burke, Catherine & Harold 
Burke, Susan & David 
Curwin, Linda & Bill 
Dryden, Marg & Les 
Glendinning, Gloria & Bill 
Griffin, Eva & Ellard 
Guitard, Kathy & Cody 
Henderson, Sharon & Jim 
Lam, Rachel & Justin Jackson 
Lam, Arthur & Rachel 
Martel, Joy & John 
Matson, John 
MacQuade, Marg & Bob 
Olkinitskyi, Stan & Dmitry 
Parker, Russell & Lisa 
Sweezey, Barb & Art 
Taylor, Georgie Lee & Ralph 
Tingley Rupert & Nancy Land 
Toczko, Alison & Ed 
Turner, Claudette & Greg 

Submitted by, 
Art Sweezey 
Chair 
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Technical Team 

We had another busy year in the tech department especially with the updates to the service schedule and 
addition of new gear in the Gymnasium to support the contemporary worship space. Also, equipment 
upkeep is always a challenge as older gear begins to require cleaning, maintenance and repairs. 

Video production and sermon uploads are keeping a steady pace and viewership continues to grow. We 
are anticipating bringing new people to the team to continue to grow this area of ministry and improve on 
production techniques. 

Thanks again to all the people who volunteer with the technical team and to all who encourage us as we 
continue to learn and strive for excellence in the jobs and duties that we carry out each week. 

Technical Diredor - First Baptist Mondon 
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Associate Pastor of Discipleship 

2018 was the year we "Redefined Sundays". I loved working with the pastoral team on this exciting vision! 
We spent long hours praying through the changes, crafting the changes, debating the changes, 
communicating the changes, and then, helping the changes happen! 

Spiritual Growth Options were an important part of the "Redefining Sundays" vision. Spiritual growth 
Options, or S.G.O's, are small group discipleship opportunities. We felt that if we offered these Spiritual 
Growth Options before and after worship on Sunday mornings, people would find them easier to fit into 
their busy schedules and, we thought they would be a great way to build community around our 
simultaneous worship experiences. 

We started with seven S.G.O's when we launched "Redefining Sundays" in the Spring of 2018: "The Adult 
Bible Class" led by Rick Thomas, "Between Sundays" led by Peter Reid, a book study called "The Making of 
An Ordinary Saint" led by Heather Veysey, an S.G.O. for Youth and Young Adults led by Pastor Andy, 
Worship Dance for Kids led by Molly Savoy and Alice Campbell, Drama for Youth led by Katerina Olkinitsky, 
and Conversation Circles for People Learning English coordinated by Cynthia Ferguson and led by various 
volunteers. Chris Black, an experienced ESL teacher, came to First Baptist and helped our volunteers 
prepare to lead the Conversation Circles. In addition to the seven S.G.O's we provided nursery care so 
young parents could participate. There was good participation in this first set of S.G.O's. The S.G.O's 
created quite a buzz and when the buzz was about things that weren't working very well, we chalked it up 
to learning how to do something new and began to make improvements. 

We initially had six Spiritual Growth Options plus nursery care planned for the Fall of 2018 but a couple of 
the groups weren't able to go ahead because their leaders had to step out. Another S.G.O. didn't draw 
any participants. The three that went ahead were: "The Adult Bible Class" led by Rick Thomas, "Knowing 
Jesus; Knowing Me" led by Pastor Sandy, and an S.G.O. for Youth and Young Adults led by Sean Inglis. 

Meanwhile, four small group Bible Studies and/or "4X4 small groups" continued to meet at various times 
throughout the week. 

You'll be reading more about discipleship as you read our other annual reports because discipleship 
happens in many ways. It happens in our Firstkids' Ministries on Sunday mornings, in our weekday Youth, 
Young Adult and Powerhouse ministries, in our weekly Day Care Chapels, and in one-on-one relationships. 
I had the joyous privilege of discipling three young girls for baptism in November and into December. 

Discipleship also happens in support groups like Grief Share and Parenting Events. Last September, we 
offered a special Grief Share session for people who had lost a spouse. Eight people participated. My 
sincere thanks to Jean Phillips for her caring leadership in this significant ministry. 

Also, in September, we offered a Parenting Event called "Taking Our Faith Back To School". Sarah 
Cogswell, Pastor of Children and Families at The Journey Church, challenged us to develop a Biblical 
Worldview and led engaging discussions about tolerance and bullying. These special support groups met 
after Worship at noon on two different Sundays and Marg Dryden served beautiful lunches at both events. 
Thanks ever so much, Marg! 

I have been grateful for other community building aspects of "Redefining Sundays". Breakfast on Easter 
Sunday morning and Sunday Lunch in honor of the church's 190th anniversary, both in the gym, were well 
attended. Cynthia Ferguson and her Team served an amazing and (colorful!) breakfast to approximately 
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200 people on Easter Sunday morning. Another team, led by Florence Devarenne and Carol Boudreau 
served delicious soups to about 230 people on our Anniversary Sunday. 

Our new Connections Team, co-led by David Campbell and Beverley Robar!, and our new Kiosk Ministry 
Team under the direction of Dahl DeJoya have been helping newcomers find their way on Sunday 
mornings and blessing us all with a warm welcome. We're especially grateful for the Connections Team 
members who brave both the heat and the cold to work outside as parking attendants! Our thanks, too, 
to Katie Clements and Sean Inglis, co-ordinators of our new Cafe Ministry, for blessing us with snacks on 
Sunday mornings. 

We're glad to have a more open and appealing gathering space in the church vestry on Sunday mornings. 
My thanks to Betty and Bruce Peacock and their Team for our wonderful new Historical Center and to all 
who have helped make our church library more manageable and therefore, more accessible. Thanks, too, 
to Joanne Steen for setting up the new children's activity center in the vestry, 

"Footloose", the friendship ministry Cynthia Ferguson continues to co- ordinate for women, the men's 
monthly breakfast that John Chute organizes, Fellowship First for Seniors, Wednesday Night Suppers, and 
"Stay and Chat", a monthly extension of Contemporary Worship, all nurture community. Thanks to all who 
provided these friendship opportunities in 2018 and to all who made the effort to attend. 

In my role as Associate Pastor, I filled in for Pastor Richard when he was away, helped lead Traditional 
Worship, preached from time to time, and designed special worship experiences for Maundy Thursday and 
Christmas Eve. I also continued to serve as the Pastoral Representative on the Miracles Board of Directors 
and am thrilled with the growing partnership between Miracles and First. Hats off to our Miracles Board, 
our new Miracles Director, Vanessa Golding, the Miracles Staff, and our church volunteers. I am especially 
grateful for the wonderful job Nancy Land did leading Day Care Chapel the first few months of the year. 

I am grateful for once a month opportunities to be with our children in our Sunday morning FirstKids' 
Ministries and to have one Sunday a month to be with my Pastor husband in the church he is serving. Its 
been wonderful to have Gordon working here in Moncion since September. We are also grateful to 
Uplands Baptist Church for releasing Gordon once a month so he can be here at First with us. 

Thank you so much for all the loving support and encouragement you continue to give me. Your 
understanding and generous support of me and my family during my Father's critical illness in December 
was extraordinary. I am grateful to you and to God for blessing us with such a wonderful church 
community! 

Pastor Sandy 
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FELLOWSHIP FIRST, 2018 

Fellowship First is a Church ministry of First Baptist, which strives to provide fellowship opportunities for our 
seniors, soon to be seniors, retirees and wannabe retirees. Fellowship is promoted through gatherings 
where devotions, meals, activities, music and entertainment are provided. This ministry has been a feature 
for seniors ongoing for more than thirty years. 

The group is organized and led by a coordinating couple, assisted by four team leader groups. We have four 
"calling/ members" lists. Each list of 25 - 30 persons is overseen by a team leader group. Those on our lists 
are contacted prior to each event and there are notices in the Church Bulletin. We would welcome visitors 
or potential members to join us at anytime/ event. For further information or interest in attending one of 
our gatherings, please speak to a team leader or a coordinator. 

The workload is shared by each of the teams taking a turn in organizing one of our events. Over the past 
year we have hosted four events. For the first time two programs were musical concerts which were open 
to the public; they were concerts held in the Church Sanctuary in the evening. At each concert, one of our 
teams hosted a fellowship luncheon during the intermission. More than 125 people attended each of the 
concerts. A bonus from these concerts is that we have had new persons attend our other programs, and 
some attend our Church Services. 

In 2018 we had four events: -

February 10 ~ a musical concert by For the Cross 

May 12 ~ a musical concert by Emmaus Road 

September 15 ~ Harvest Dinner at the Havelock Memorial Hall, Butternut Ridge - becoming an annual event; 
music by the Biddington Family 

November 17 ~ our annual "Christmas in November" Dinner; this year held at Legends Room, Moncton 
Coliseum; music by the Korean Church Youth Ensemble 

The team leaders for our four groups are: 

K. Lothian and Broads 

J. Robart and Thomases 

C. Wilson and .J Phillips 

Willistons and Taylors 

We thank the team leaders, advisers MacQuades, Bannisters and 5. Sutherland, and treasurers Willistons. 
We are all blessed by their contributions. 

R. and G. Taylor, Coordinators 
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MIRACLES AT FIRST CHILDCARE CENTRE 

The year 2018 was a year of change, growth and achievement for Miracles. Early in the year we welcomed 
our Executive Director Janet Perry back from her maternity leave, but God had a plan for Janet, and at the 
end of the summer she left Miracles for another opportunity. We trusted that the Lord also had a plan for 
Miracles. We were happy to welcome Vanessa Golding as our Interim Executive Director, and by the end 
of the year, after completing a search for a new Executive Director, the Board was very pleased to 
announce that Vanessa accepted the position and will continue to lead Miracles at First as the Executive 
Director going forward! 

For the daycare industry in New Brunswick, 2018 was also a year of change. The provincial government 
continued with its Early Learning Childcare Action Plan to improve the standard of care in daycares across 
the province, with the goal of building a high quality early learning and child care system. Daycares in New 
Brunswick are far from a babysitting service, but rather provide high quality, inclusive early learning for 
children. 

To this end, Miracles received from the provincial government a One-Time Quality Improvement Grant. 
This allowed Miracles to make improvements in the centre to both its indoor and outdoor play 
environments with various new and improved learning stations. Later in the year, Miracles applied to 
become a New Brunswick Designated Early Learning and Childcare Centre. Only daycares in the province 
that meet the highest standards as outlined by the government receive this designation. Miracles at First is 
proud to have been awarded this designation and to be recognized as an expletory centre by the provincial 
government. This is an honour that has been earned by our staff and leadership through striving for 
excellence in every area of service at Miracles! 

Not only has Miracles seen growth in its standard of care this year, but it has also seen growth as a 
ministry of the church. The Board of Directors is unified in its commitment to continuing to develop its 
partnership with the church, and in particular, in developing a connection between the church and 
daycare families. In December, Miracles hosted a Christmas Concert and Party for our daycare and church 
families. It was a wonderful success, with the new format more fun for the children and providing for 
better fellowship among families. Over 200 adults and children enjoyed a meal in the Robert L. Steeves 
Memorial Hall following the concert. Another key component of Miracles' ministry is the Chaplaincy 
Program, which provides a time of spiritual nurture to the oldest group of children on a weekly basis. The 
children are learning Bible stories, fun praise and worship songs, and are praying. 

There is a significant amount of work that is required to direct and manage a business and to grow a 
ministry. I would like to thank each Board member for their time and energy devoted to Miracles at First 
both inside and outside of board meetings. To those leaving the Board, including Adriana Campbell, Kathy 
Guitard, Lisa Parker, Akram Ben Salah (Parent Member), and Ralph Taylor, thank you for your service and 
efforts. Thank you also to our staff, who have shown dedication and initiative on a daily basis, and have 
helped shape Miracles at First. The Board would also like to thank the congregation for the many ways in 
which they support Miracles, and especially for their prayer support that Miracles may continue to grow as 
an effective ministry of the church. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Alison Toczko 
Chair 
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First Moncion Baptist Church Child Care Centre Inc. 
(Miracles at First) 

2018 Budget 2018 Actual 2017 Actual 2019 Budget 

Revenue 
Fee and miscellaneous revenue 430,000 437,247 438,728 430,000 
Government grants 125,000 142,142 130,990 161,000 

555,000 579,389 569,718 591,000 

Expenditures 
Bank Charges 1,600 752 1,267 1,500 
Maintenance & cleaning supplies 500 1,622 243 500 
Cleaning contracts 17,200 16,118 17,195 17,000 
Advertising 600 172 78 600 
Equipment 3,000 2,466 999 3,000 
Family fund 1,000 1,000 
Food purchases 28,000 22,921 25,274 28,000 
Everyday needs 2,000 3,084 2,526 2,000 
Miscellaneous expenses 1,500 467 1,221 1,000 
Office Supplies 1,000 2,226 1,825 1,500 
Outings 700 42 110 700 
Salaries 440,000 476,433 457,349 470,000 
Classroom supplies 2,500 3,676 2,389 5,500 
Telephone 1,600 1,650 1,662 1,600 
Professional development 1,500 630 849 1,500 
Employee benefits 34,900 38,304 32,864 39,000 
Dues and fees 100 113 113 100 
Insurance 3,000 1,992 1,992 3,000 
First Baptist Church 13,080 13,080 16,699 13,080 

553,780 585,747 564,654 590,580 ···---

Excess of revenue over expenditures 1,220 (6,358) 5,064 420 

Accumulated surplus, beginning 82,525 82,461 

Excess of revenue over expenditures (6,358) 5,064 

Allocation to general reserve (5,000) 

Accumulated surplus, ending 76,166 82,525 
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GriefShare 

GriefShare ministry was offered again in 2018. It was advertised through church bulletins, videos, and 
personal contacts. 
The main program was offered from March to May over 11 weeks. There was one participant from outside 
our church family. 
In the fall, we offered a two- hour session on "The Loss of a Spouse". This was attended by some from our 
congregation and several from outside our church. 
GriefShare is a faith-based program offering support and hope to those who are grieving as they journey 
from mourning to the return of joy. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Jean Phillips 
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First Kids Annual Report - 2019 

By the end of 2018, it wasn't unusual for us to have over 20 children in "FirstKids." "FirstKids" is the new 
name we gave to our age graded Sunday morning Children's Ministries as part of "Redefining Sundays." 
Even though "The Trail", a visual depiction of the age appropriate spiritual goals and concepts for children, 
still describes our mission with children and keeps us on task as a Team, "FirstKids" is a ministry name that 
makes sense to newcomers. 

Part of our vision for "Redefining Sundays" was to strengthen our Sunday morning Children's ministries. 
Even though strengthening any ministry is an ongoing process and requires constant diligence, we've been 
excited about the progress we have achieved in 2018. One new component that has strengthened our 
entire FirstKids ministry is our new registration/ attendance record keeping system. Dahl DeJoya, gifted 
with administrative skills, has helped us establish this system and maintain it week by week. 

One of our greatest challenges with our FirstKids Ministry is to make it visible and accessible. Because we 
don't have a consolidated space for our Children's Ministry area, our dispersed children's groups are hard 
to find in our large facility. Well trained volunteers on our Connections Team and at our Kiosk, brochures 
that describe our FirstKids ministries and where to find them, interior maps of the second and third floors, 
and direction signs on the walls are all ways we have attempted to deal with this challenge in 2018. 

What follows is a peek at each of our age appropriate children's ministries and the wins we are celebrating 
at the end of 2018. 

Welcome Circle (Babies and Toddlers) - located just outside the sanctuary in the Queen St. entrance. Trail 
Goals: 

• Jesus loves me 
• God made me 
• Church is a happy place to be 
• Church is a family for my family 

During the Winter of 2018, Sandra Scott and Adriana Campbell, handed this ministry which they had 
freshly revised in 2017, off to new co-directors: Janet Perry and Sonia Miller. Janet and Sonia worked 
together to provide two trained volunteers every Sunday and see that both volunteers and parents 
adhered to our Welcome Circle Health and Safety Policies. After Janet stepped down in the Spring, Sonia 
kept the Welcome Circle open and staffed with volunteers through the summer and Fall of 2018. Our 
sincere thanks to Sonia, Janet, Vickie Melanson, Irina Olkinitskaya, Sylvia Williston, Janice Short, and Lynn 
Ritchie for their faithful, loving ministry to our littlest ones and their families. 

Since relocating the Welcome Circle from the third floor of the Christian Education Building to its new 
location just outside the sanctuary door, the number of times the Welcome Circle has been used by 
various babies and toddlers has doubled. But there are even more babies and toddlers in the building on 
Sunday mornings. Some parents who attend contemporary worship elect to keep their children with 
them; watching over their little ones as they play in the Baby Corner that we set up in one corner of the 
gym. 

Wonder (Pre-school, ages 4-5) · located on the third floor of the Christian Education Building. Trail Goals: 

*God made everything 

* Jesus is my Best Friend 
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*I can talk with Jesus anywhere, any time, about anything 
*The Bible is God's Special Book 

Five of the children who had consistently been in Wonder for the last two years, started school and moved 
up into Discover in 2018. Three new children began to attend. One of the things that our new 
simultaneous worship gatherings has prompted us to do is expand our rotating volunteer teams so every 
volunteer can participate in worship on a regular basis. Katerina Olkinitskiy and Jennifer Crate have joined 
Mary Jane Haley and Cathy Burke on the Team as teachers. Several younger volunteers have joined as 
helpers. 

Discover (Kindergarten- Grade 3) - located on the third floor of the Christian Education Building. 
Trail goals: 

*I can trust God 

*Obedience is best 

*Giving is God's way 

*Treat others the way I would like to be treated 

When we started our simultaneous worship gatherings we consolidated "Young Children and Worship" 
that we offered for children this age at 9:30 a.m on Sunday mornings and "Discover", the ministry we 
offered for children this age at 11:00 a.m. We chose to keep the "Young Children and Worship" 
curriculum but the "Discover" name. The same children who attended Young Children and Worship 
usually stayed for Discover so we didn't lose anyone with the consolidation. This has consistently been our 
largest age group on Sunday mornings but in 2018 we gained at least five new children who all attend 
regularly. Our thanks to Kim Robinson, Isabel Eagles, Joanne Steen, Dawna Steeves and many other young 
volunteers who taught and helped with Discover on a rotating basis. 

Launch- (Pre-teens, Grades 4&5) -located off the vestry balcony, the fourth room from the back stairway. 
Trail Goals: 

*Understand adolescence 

*Choose Jesus 

*IGNITE daily quiet time 

*Serve others 

Our average Launch attendance was a consistent five in 2018. We lost two of our faithful attenders to 
Middle School in the Fall of 2018 but others have been showing up on Sundays to keep the number even. 
We expanded our rotating Launch Team of volunteers to make it possible for every teacher and helper on 
the Team to be in worship on a regular basis. Since the Spring of 2018, Joe Martin, JM Dejoya, and Molly 
Savoy have all been taking turns with our original core: Stephanie Delisle, Carl Robinson, and Alice 
Campbell. 

FirstKids in May and Summer 

May is Missions month in our FirstKids ministry and in May 2018, various volunteers led the combined 
Wonder and Discover groups in CBM's KidsCare "Hey, Its Not Fair": lessons on the effects of poverty. 
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Thanks to our wonderful summer student, Katie Clements and her team of volunteers, FirstKids continued 
in a different format all summer. Katie and her team of leaders and helpers led one group of kids (age 4-
Grade 5) through a series of Bible Adventure Lessons from late June- Labor Day weekend. This group had 
an average attendance of six but one Sunday, there were 15 kids there! 

Pastor Sandy 

Powerhouse Kids 

January 2018 saw Powerhouse continue, after a break for the Christmas holidays, from our great start in 
2017. Numbers often decline somewhat in the winter months, however, and we averaged 15-18 children 
in attendance. This included children from kindergarten to Grade 5, with Middle School students joining 
us for special events. 

A night at Powerhouse begins after the children have enjoyed a great supper with the members and 
friends of First Moncton. We move upstairs to our Large Group Opening, where the children worship 
through enthusiastic singing and dancing, and enjoy object lessons, videos, or dramatizations that teach 
them truths from God's Word, using the "Dig In" curriculum by Group Publishing again this year. The 
children then break into small groups, based on age, to travel through stations for a hands-on Bible 
Lesson, games/sports in the gym, and a Special Interest group. The special interest groups in 2018 were 
led by various volunteers who came for an evening each to teach a skill or share an interest, ranging from 
dental hygiene to creating fabric art. 

A continued area of focus in 2018 was connecting with parents. We again hosted several specific events to 
which we could invite families, providing transportation and dinner with their children and the church 
family. These included a variety show put on by the children, a year-end celebration in May, a kick-off in 
September, Trunk-or-Treat in October, and a Christmas party in December. The Trunk-or-Treat event is 
worth particular mention, as we were thrilled to have a number of adults from First join us in the parking 
lot with their cars decorated and spilling with treats, helping to build positive relationships and 
demonstrate the joy and fun there is in serving God! 

Of course, all this is only possible because of the fantastic volunteers we have, many of whom have been 
energetically serving God on Wednesday nights at First for many, many years. These include: 

Mary Jane Haley 
Dawn Stultz 

Catherine Burke 
Wendy Sullivan 

With thanksgiving for your continuous prayers, 

Beverley Robar! 
Powerhouse Coordinator 

Haley Jones 
Isabel Eagles 
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Visitation Ministry Team Report 

Our Visitation Ministry Team, comprised of 14 volunteers and Pastor Sandy, averaged 18 visits a month in 
2018. These visits were in addition to the faithful, weekly visits Pastor Richard and Don Lancaster made to 
those who were in the hospital. 

Our Visitation Ministry Team primarily visits with folks who are no longer able to come to church. We are 
glad to be the church going to them, in the private homes, care facilities, and nursing homes where they 
live. Volunteers often read Scripture and pray. But their very presence and warm, friendly conversation 
helps the folks they visit experience God's love. Every volunteer would say that this is never a one-way 
street. Most of us come away feeling that we have received much more than we have given and are 
consistently blessed and inspired by the faith and love of those we visit. 

We had 27 people on our list to visit in January 2018. Four of these loved ones passed away during the 
year. 

Rev. Scott Ryder, Chaplain at the Kenneth Spencer Memorial Home, spoke at our Visitation Ministry Team 
meeting in March. Scott talked with us about needs particular to people living in nursing homes and gave 
us many helpful insights and suggestions. 

The Team gathered again in Pastor Sandy's home in October, this time to enjoy a meal together, review 
our Ministry Team guidelines and expectations, and co-ordinate our assignments. 

We are very grateful to John Ferguson, John and Elizabeth Chute, and other members of our Visitation 
Ministry Team for leading many others from our church in a Christmas caroling event at the Kenneth 
Spencer Memorial Home in December. 

Pastor Sandy 

The Shawl Ministry 

The Shawl Ministry has had another busy year in delivering shawls, throws, lap robes, slippers, hats, 
mittens and baby outfits to church members. We have also delivered items to places like New Life 
Mission, Crisis Pregnancy Center, schools (Beaverbrook, Edith Cavel!) as well as the Salvus Clinic and Head 
Start. 

Many thanks to the dedication of knitters who provide a great service. 

We would appreciate being informed who would be blessed by one of these items. We have received 
many comments from those receiving these blessings. 

Sincerely, 
Carmen MacDougall 
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Footloose 

Footloose Women's ministry was well attended equally by women from both the Contemporary and 
Traditional services and many new people. 

Highlights were the spiritual overnight retreat with Susan Crompton as hostess and a Christmas games, 
present and cookie exchange with Dawna Steeves as hostess. 

Women expressed how wonderful and relaxing the events were. 

The retreat included worship lead by Alice Campbell, a large Mexican fiesta, campfire, hot tub soak, 
several group and private devotions, meditations and a trail nature walk marked with verses for reading 
and group prayer. Hot chocolate at a cabin rewarded the walk. 

Women connection and friendship was greatly appreciated. 

Respectfully submitted 

Cynthia Ferguson 

Adult Bible Class 

The Adult Bible class continues to meet Sunday mornings from 9:15- 10:00am in the Ladies Parlour, and a 
warm welcome awaits anyone and everyone who would like to join us. We have an average attendance of 
about twenty-five men and women who love God's Word and who enjoy studying the Biblical theology 
that arises from it. Currently, we are working our way through J.I. Packer's book, Concise Theology and 
have covered about half the book, which is available for about $20.00, but not an absolute 
necessity. There are about 95 chapters, each of which is only about two pages of fairly easy reading. In 
class, the text is read a paragraph at a time so that everyone who wants can ask questions or add 
comments, which usually generates lots of lively discussion. This makes the class a genuine discipleship 
experience as each person is challenged to grow in knowledge, grace and love, both for the Lord and His 
Word, but also in our love for one another. Some of the topics we'll be addressing in the coming months 
include: "The Holy Spirit's Ministry to Believers," "Salvation," "Election," "Effectual Calling," "Illumination," 
"Regeneration," "Justification," 11Sanctification," "The Kingdom of God/Heaven,'1 "The Church," 
"Sacraments/Ordinances," "Baptism," "The Lord's Supper," "Bishops/Elders/Pastors," etc., and eventually 
various aspects of "Eschatology." 

Rick Thomas, 
Teach er /Facilitator 
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First Connections 

The First Connections team is our frontline welcome and has been an integral part of our growth this 
year. Beginning in the parking lot and sidewalks and extending to the Welcome Centre and every part of 
the building and First Baptist community, we aim to create an atmosphere where people know they are 
welcome and wanted. It's helping with the little things -- where to park, which door to use, where the 
coffee and washrooms are located, what programs are offered -- to the big ones, like showing folks where 
their children will be and that they are in a safe and caring environment, and inviting them to choose a 
style of worship that is comfortable to them. We have over 2 dozen members of the Connections team 
that gladly escort newcomers to the sought-after locations and introduce them to others along the way. 

It's all about connections. And you're part of it! Whether you're part of the official Team or not (and 
we're always looking for new volunteers!), a welcoming smile, a word of introduction, an offer to show 
someone the way ... these are the things that welcome people to the family of God at First Moncton. 

Huge thanks to the many volunteers who arrive early on Sunday mornings to offer a warm welcome and a 
connection to First Moncton! 

David Campbell & Beverley Robart 
Connections Coordinators 
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2018 KIOSK TEAM ANNUAL REPORT 

On September 09, 2018, a meeting was conducted by Pastor Sandy Sutherland to go over with the Kiosk 
Volunteers on how we will manage the Kiosk located in the vestry. Below is the list of volunteers that 
composed the Kiosk Team. 

1. Barbara Tremble Cook 
2. Mary Newell 
3. Patricia Dubois 
4. Georgie L. Taylor 
5. Florine Rutledge 
6. Dahl De Joya 
7. Debbie Barr 
8. Marg Dryden 
9. Alice Hutchinson 

Basically, the Team's Purpose is "TO WELCOME" anyone who approaches the Kiosk and "TO ANSWER" their 
questions. As discussed by Pastor Sandy during the meeting, below is a detailed job description. 

1. Be at the Kiosk from 10:00AM until Worship begins at 10:30. Return to the Kiosk for approximately 
15 minutes after worship ends. 

2. Enjoy chatting with people and welcoming anyone who is new. 
3. Refer to the accordion file for information if someone has a question, or call to someone else who 

may be able to help. 
4. Acquaint yourself with "What? When? Why?ilnformation about upcoming events and ministries. Be 

ready to answer people's questions about these. 
5. Be prepared to explain where our Sunday morning FirstKids Ministry groups meet and give clear 

directions to help people find these rooms. Or better yet! Ask someone on the Connections Team 
to show new people the way. 

6. Look for a note or verbal confirmation from a member of the Benevolent Ministry Team ... telling 
you which of them is on duty that morning. The members of the team are Laura Selig, Lynn Ritchie 
and Marg Dryden. Send for the team members on duty if someone shows up looking for financial or 
other kinds of practical help. Otherwise, call for a pastor. 

7. Encourage anyone who wants to make a contribution to a special need or mission to put their 
donation in an envelope, write on the envelope how the money is to be used, and place the 
envelope in the offering plate during worship. 

8. Thank people who give us their contact information by giving them one of the gift bags. Slide newly 
completed contact cards under Pastor Sandy's office door. 

9. Help people borrow a church library book by simply using the sign in sheet to sign their books in and 
out. 
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TO ENHANCE above job description, we have discussed some recommendations and have given their 
current status. 

--
DECISION/ RECOMMENDATION STATUS 

It has been decided that the schedule will be a month per kiosk member. If there will be Fulfilled 
cases that the person in-charge for that Sunday will not be available and said person 
found a replacement from any of the members, said person needs to inform Pastor 
Sandy and Dahl De Joya on the changes. 
Schedules from 2018 September to 2019 April Fulfilled 
It has been suggested to have a map of the church for newcomers at First. Fulfilled 
It has been suggested to also have the schedules of different ministry teams. Pending 
(Benevolent Ministry Team/ Connection~_Team) 
It has been decided that "First Kids" Registration will be at the assigned room with the Fulfilled 
teachers-in-charge, not at the Kiosk. 
It has been decided that Kiosk Members should not accept donations. Donors may place Fulfilled 
their donations in the offering plate or give it to the tellers in the board room after 
service. ·----------~----"--. - ·-·- ~-- ----

Suggested to inform the Kiosk Members of future church events. Fulfilled --- --··-··· -----

Dahl DeJoya, 
Kiosk Ministry Co-ordinator 

Sunday Morning Cafe 

The cafe is a new addition to our Sunday morning services and has been a great addition that has been 
bringing people together. We supply the food and drinks for both the Traditional and Contemporary 
service times. I am excited to see the new things that we are going to be doing in this next year, see new 
faces come and join our team and how this ministry will help bring our congregation closer together. 
Eating is such a big part of out Christian culture, and to see how it really pulls people together is an 
amazing thing to watch. To be able to fellowship and be in community with one another is such an 
important part of God's plan for our lives. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Katie Clements 
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Student Life Ministries Report 

This has been a great year for our student ministries. We have been growing as a Church who welcomes 
young adults and have seen great growth in our youth ministries. We excited to see how well our 
ministries are going to take off in the next year! 

Here are some highlights from both the youth and young adult ministries: 

• We have 8 terrific leaders this year-Joseph Martin, Sean Inglis, Jenn Crate, Carl Robinson, Sandra 
Scott, Cody Guitard, Kathy Guitard, Katie Clements. 

• We have two Crandall University interns- Joseph Martin and Sean Inglis. 
• We have made the switch to having both Middle and High School youth groups on Sunday nights 

at 6:00 PM. 
• The youth went on a Mission Tour to Toronto in the summer and we partnered with Highfield 

Baptist Church. This was a first-time mission's trip for most of our youth, and It was incredible to 
see how they all bonded together on the trip. 

• Andy has been out of the office for a bit, but our incredible team of youth leaders stepped up and 
were able to keep things moving as planned, with the help of the leadership at First. 

• This summer we had an Art Camp for ages 4-7, as well as a Superhero Camp. 
• Our small group studies at Youth Group have been a blessing to see. Our youth have been 

connecting with each other and the leaders in incredible way. The openness, trust, friendship, and 
family that we have been growing this year is amazing. 

Young Adults: 

• Our young adult ministry is comprised primarily of an in-depth Bible Study and luncheon that 
challenge our young adults to think more deeply about the Christian faith and to connect with 
other members of our church family through inter-generational fellowship, respectively. 

• We continued our weekly Bible Study and luncheon in the Winter 2018 semester. 
• We held our Bible Study on Sunday mornings at 10:15 AM. 
• We began studying through John Piper's book "Fifty Reasons Why Jesus Came to Die" and having 

an in-depth discussion each week of one of the reasons why Jesus died on the cross. 
• We were hosted by several different families within the church for lunch, fostering a great time of 

inter-generational fellowship. 
• Starting in September 2018, we re-formatted the young adult Bible Study and luncheon. 
• We have been having our Bible Study after church at the same time as our luncheon, allowing the 

young adults to be able to have the study and lunch in the same place, as well as allowing our 
hosts to sit in on our study if they so choose. 

• Almost all of our young adults in this group are involved in leading a ministry in our church. 

We have found this year to be a busy year but an exciting year. The youth and young adult ministries are 
only going to get stronger as time goes on. We have seen the youth growing together and the young 
adults furthering their friendships. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Katie Clements and Cody Guitard 
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EVELYN EATON WMS GROUP 

The Evelyn Eaton Missionary Society of First Moncion United Baptist Church meets at 2:30 pm in the 
Church parlour on the third Wednesday of the month; however, we meet on the first Wednesday in 
December, and we have no meeting in August. The average attendance in 2018 was twenty-four 
members. 

During the year, we supported Atlantic Baptist Women/United Baptist Women's Missionary Union 
financially by donating the sum of $12,763.30. 

Our Spiritual Life program involves the reading of four ABW recommended books, as well as specific 
scripture readings, and also subscriptions to ABW's Tidings magazine. 

Throughout the year, our Shawl Ministry delivered many knitted items for the Pregnancy & Wellness 
Centre, Salvus Clinic, Powerhouse Kids, New Life Mission, Moncion Hospital Nursery, Edith Cavell and 
Beaverbrook Schools, Headstart and Miracles At First Childcare Centre. 

Also, in 2018, we gave personal items and a monetary donation to a newly-arrived adopted adult daughter 
of a refugee family that our church has been assisting. 

Various programs and devotionals are presented by our members and guests during the year and are 
based on the work of CBM and other organizations/groups working toward spreading the gospel to the 
world and helping the needy. Here are the programs and activities for our group during 2018. 

• Program on the work of the Northern Cross Community Church in Happy Valley, Goose Bay, NL 
• 2018 Great Canadian Bible Study "Maria of Magdela - Apostle to the Apostles" presented by Pastor 

Sandy Sutherland 
• Presentation by Cody Guitard, the Regional Director for Ratio Christi Canada 
• Attendance at the annual ABW Women's Convention at Crandall University in May. 
• Presentation by Gary Selig on refugees coming to Canada from the Congo (DRC) and the situation in 

that area. 
• Attendance at a meeting at Highfield Baptist Church in June for a program presented by Melanie and 

Michael Waddell, CBM field staff in the Philippines. 
• Program on Ken and Wendy Derksen's work in Rwanda 
• Video on Co-Mission by Terry Smith, Executive Director of CBM, including his interviews with some of 

CBM's field staff 
• Participation in ABW's 2018 Home Mission Project - "HEY-Helping Exploited Youth." 
• Baptist World Alliance Youth Ministry Training Course and the updates on Jeff Carter's new position 

with the BWA and the family's move to Canada 
• Program on two volunteer opportunities with CBM - SENT and STEP 
• Gathering at the Weldon Baptist Church - Dr. Marsha Boyd-Mitchell of the Christian Action Federation 

of NB was the speaker. 
• Gary and Laura Selig's presentation on their September mission trip with Paige Lean to Bolivia. 
• Attendance at Uplands Baptist Church for the 2018 Baptist Women's World Day of Prayer. 
• Christmas program organized by Betty Peacock and refreshments provided by Gloria Glendinning and 

volunteers. Music was provided by John Chute and Linda Broad. 
Anyone interested in supporting missions at home or abroad is always welcome at our meetings as a 
member or as a guest. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Isabel Eagles, Outgoing Secretary 
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First Moves Annual Report of 2018 

First Moves is the title given to First Baptist Moncton's response to Social Justice. It incorporates the 
previous Social Justice, Fed4Life and Christmas Wishes programs. We encourage New Life Mission, Salvus 
Clinic, and the YMCA's Reconnect Program by offering our time. We are a founding member of the new 
registered charity Community of Hope. The purpose of this new charity is to educate our community 
about the existence of Human Trafficking here and what we can do to block the use of individuals as sex 
slaves. First Moves has offered to assist with the Benevolent Fund program within the church, with 
individuals whose needs require a bridge support prior to being eligible for community services. 

The Moving Ministry continues, but it has been adapted to a truck and driver only. The service is available 
for individuals within the church with limited financial means, as well as clients of Salvus and Reconnect. 
Initially, we were providing the lifters, but we have adapted that to just the transportation. We ask that 
the individual complete the packing and secure lifters. We have participated in over 27 moves in the past 
2 years. 

This year our Christmas Wishes was not as fruitful as in past years. We believe that was due to a number 
of factors but the most glaring was the number of other requests that came our way in December. For 
that reason we will stagger our fund raising efforts for New Life Mission, Salvus Clinic and Reconnect 
throughout the year. 

First Moves is a demonstration of: our love of God, our love for others, and sharing of the resources God 
has given us. 

Submitted by: 

Dawn Stultz 
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Global Missions Team 

I would like to thank fellow team members, Arlene Richardson, Georgie Lee Taylor, Betty Peacock, Pat 
Dubois, & Karlene Cates for attending planning meetings, and helping with the Missions projects 
mentioned below, for the year of 2018. I also want to thank Pastor Richard and Pastor Andy for their input 
and advice given when asked for, when needed. I know God has blessed abundantly, everyone at First, for 
the generous financial support given towards the 2018 Missions Committee projects. 

On February 24th, for the first time ever, The International Ministries Team and the Missions Team joined 
forces to organize and host a combined Music for Missions/International Supper event, in the Fellowship 
Hall, as a fund raiser for Laura Kelly, for her planned Missions work in Tanzania. With willing, varied 
talented musicians, a fabulous emcee, skilled Tech team, strong, able custodial team, organized minds, 
hands and feet of food/beverage set up and clean up team plus cheerful financial givers with a swift and 
accurate teller's team, the evening was a huge success. That evening, $1812.75 was raised, with more that 
came in the following week or two, for a final total of $2404.40, the most that has ever been raised for a 
Music for Missions fund raiser evening. 

We planned and carried out a "CBM She Matters Campaign" for Sunday May 23th , to help women around 
the world. 

In July, we helped with a fund-raising barbecue to help Paige Lean go with Gary and Laura Selig on their 
Mission Trip to South America, with CBM. 

In late fall, we helped Cynthia Ferguson put on a Missions event in the Vestry, which consisted of a potluck 
supper with special guest speakers Bruno and Kathleen Soucy presenting their Missions work in Latin 
America with CBM. 

In December, we supported the CBM Hopeful gifts for Change fund raiser. Many items were purchased by 
individuals and groups within our church, for those less fortunate than we are, in other parts of the 
world. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Linda Broad 
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Financial Secretary 

The duty of the Financial Secretary is to keep accurate records of donations to the church and to issue 
receipts for income tax purposes for those donations. Many in the congregation give regularly by using 
boxed, numbered sets of envelopes, while others use the Automatic Bank Withdrawal option. This year, 
an internet option, Push Pay, was available but was discontinued at year end. Other donations are 
sometimes made using pew envelopes or one from home. As long as there is a name, address and amount 
these donations will be receipted. 

Number of envelopes issued in 2017 
Number using Auto Withdrawal 
Push Pay (regular users) 

144 
48 
6 

Anyone can start using envelopes or Auto Withdrawal at any time during the year. Contact me, Dawna 
Steeves, or the Church office to make arrangements. 

A big thank you to Carol Murray who did an admirable job as Assistant Financial Secretary during the 
winter when I was away and to Dawna Steeves who has assumed the role and did a great job in 
November. 

In 2018, memorial donations were given to First Baptist Church upon the passing of Marilyn Kerr, Janet 
Robb, David Beatty, Doreen Dykeman, Fred Nichol, Frances Jackson, Marina Allain, Arlene Steeves, Mary E. 
Dawson, Roger Robar!, Allan MacDonald, John Wride, Verna Curwin, Audrey Steeves, Elizabeth 
MacQuade, Mike Andrews, Norman Jones. 

Susan Burke 
Financial Secretary 

TELLERS 

Thank you to all the monthly and communion tellers for your service in 2018. You have made a valuable 
contribution to the church's operation in ensuring that God's monetary gifts are handled in a responsible 
and effective manner. 

David Williston 
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Membership Secretary 

Membership as of December 31, 2017- 555 
Membership as of December 31, 2018- 550 

Summary 

Received by Transfer- 5 

Received by Baptism- 0 

Received by Experience- 2 

Total: 

Received by Transfer: 
Jeff Lutes 
Faye Lutes 
Peter Reid 
Lottie Reid 
Robert Price 

Received by Experience: 
Michael Wilson 
Gordon Worth 

7 

Resident Membership- 436 
Non-Resident Membership-114 
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Deacesed-11 

Transfer-1 

(at their request) 

Transferred: 
Lynda MacGibbon 

Deceased Members and Adherents: 
Mike Andrews 
David Beatty 
Gloria Cheney 
Verna Curwin 
Mary Elizabeth Dawson 
Norman Jones 
Marilyn Kerr 
Roger Robar! 
Janet Robb 
Arlene Steeves 
Audrey Steeves 
John Wride 
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Child Protection Policy 

First Baptist, Moncton, September, 2019 

Our Protection Policy is intended to make First Moncton a safer place for children and 
youth. In addition to their safety, which is our first concern, our Protection Plan is intended to 
enhance the spiritual growth and development of Children and Youth, ( we all learn better 
when our primary needs are being met), reassure parents and grandparents, and provide 
protective boundaries for individuals on our ministry teams. Our Protection Plan has five main 
components: Screening, Supervision, Reporting Allegations, Training for Ministry Teams, and 
Further Health and Safety Restrictions and Guidelines 

Screening 

All persons working with children/youth must: 
1.) Be in Grade 9 or older 
2.) Attend First Moncton for at least six months before joining a Ministry team that works 

with children and/or youth. University Students and Students from other Post -
Secondary Institutions may participate sooner but only with supervision for the first six 
months, and only if they qualify with a good reference from a professor and/or member 
of their home church who has known them for at least six months. 

3.) Be interviewed by one of our Pastoral Staff or Ministry Team Leaders. 
4.) Complete a Ministry Team Application Form. 
5.) Submit a current (every five years) police "Vulnerable Sector Check". A record 

involving any abuse of children or of any persons or animals will, in all cases, disqualify 
the individual from working with children or youth through this church. 

6.) Participate in a Protection Plan Orientation Session. 
7.) Agree to adhere to our Protection Policy by signing a copy of this document. 

Supervision 

All persons working with children and youth must: 

1.) Never be alone with a child/youth. Even if there is only one child/youth present, there 
must be at least two Ministry Team Members present. Because these two Ministry 
Team Members must be objective witnesses for one another, they cannot be in the 
same family. 

Make all ministry activity highly visible. Avoid isolated spaces. Keep opaque doors open and bar the 
threshold to the room with baby gates or half doors. Keep windows in doors uncovered so everything 
that is happening in the room can be easily seen from the corridor. Move to a quiet spot within the 
room for a private conversation with a minor but do not leave the room. Ministry Team Members must 
call parents for diaper changes unless we have written permission from the parent to do diaper changes. 



If a Ministry Team Member is required to change a diaper, they must stand behind the change table, 
and make sure the child being changed is visible to others in the room at all times. 

2.) Only touch a child appropriately; specifically on the hand, arm, or shoulder. Direct 
children who want to sit on your lap to sit beside you. Give sideways hugs, A-frame 
hugs (only cheeks touch) or quick release hugs. 

3.) Insist that children ask permission before leaving the group to use the washroom. All 
children up to Grade 6 who leave to use the washroom must be accompanied by a 
Ministry Team Member. The Ministry Team Member must first ensure that there is no 
one else in the washroom and then send the child in alone. The Ministry Team Member 
must stand with their back against the door opened to the corridor and guide the child 
with their voice. If the child needs help, the Ministry Team Member asks someone else 
to enter the washroom with them and/or sends someone for the child's parents. 
Ministry Team Members must have the parents' written consent before they can take a 
child who is being toilet trained to the washroom. 

4.) Ensure that all children up to and including Grade 12 are registered. Registration forms 
must be signed by the child/youth's parent/guardian 

5.) Ensure that all children up to and including Grade S must be signed into our Sunday 
morning and weekday children's ministries by the adult who brings them. The adult 
who brings the child must indicate in writing the name of the person who will pick up 
the child. 

6.) Be responsible for the safety of every child until the adult responsible for the child 
arrives at the ministry space to pick them up. Parents, grandparents, or the adult who 
brings the child must arrive immediately after worship or other adult event, to re-
assume responsibility for their child. They must sign to show that they are the person 
who is supposed to be picking up the child. 

7.) Ensure that children/youth being transported to First ministry events in either a private 
vehicle, taxi or bus are accompanied by at least two responsible adults. A child or youth 
may travel in a car with only one adult only if the child's parent or guardian has given 
written permission and only if there are other children or youth in the car as well. 
Children must be at least nine years old to travel on the church van without one of their 
parents or grandparents. 

8.) Ensure that pictures and names of children are not published without parental 
permission. The location of overnight events will not be made public. 

9.) Keep a record of all on line communication with Youth. 

Reporting Allegations 

Any adult who has reasonable grounds to believe that a child or youth has been 
subjected to abusive behavior will: 

1.) Listen carefully to what a child/youth says without asking questions or making notes. 
You may make notes immediately afterwards but not in the minor's presence. 



2.) Never promise not to tell anyone. Assure the child that you will only tell someone if the 
child or someone else needs help. 

3.) Report what the child/youth says and/or any other concerns or observations of possible 
abuse to one of the Pastors who must then see that the Department of Social 
Development is contacted. If the accusation is against one of the pastors, the Lead 
Pastor must also contact the Office of Canadian Baptists of Atlantic Canada. If the 
accusation is against the Lead pastor, the report must first be made to the Chair of the 
Council who will then see that the Department of Social Development and the Office of 
Canadian Baptists of Atlantic Canada are contacted. 

4.) A written copy of every report, including dates, times and the content of all pertinent 
conversations, will be kept in a confidential file in a pastor's office. These reports must 
be kept indefinitely regardless of the outcome of any subsequent investigation. 

5.) If it is proven that child abuse by a member of the church has taken place, he/she will be 
required to step down from all leadership positions. However, the church will practise 
discipline according to Matthew 18:15-17, maintain frequent communication and 
supportive relationships with those suspected or guilty of child abuse as long as these 
persons demonstrate a willingness to listen, change, and look to Christ for help. 

6.) The church will ask the Department of Social Development if it can assist in helping both 
hurting families. This does not exclude the need for hurting individuals to receive 
professional counseling. 

7.) First Moncton is only responsible to make a report if the person allegedly abused is 18 
years or younger. First Moncion takes all allegations seriously but is not responsible to 
make a report if the person allegedly abused is an adult or is now an adult. 

Training Ministry Teams 

1.) All new Ministry Team Members must complete a Child Protection orientation session 
with a Pastor or Ministry Team leader before they join a ministry team that works with minors. 
The content of this orientation session will include reasons why a Child Protection Plan is 
important, a review of our written Protection Policy, and discussion about the importance and 
implication of each aspect of the policy. 

At least once a year: 

2.) This Child Protection Plan will be reviewed and updated and copies of the document 
Posted on the website will be refreshed. 



3.) Ministry Team Training will emphasize the importance of a sound Child Protection Plan, 
review and evaluate the specific ways First's Child Protection Plan is being implemented 
in their particular ministry and commit to any changes that must be made for greater 
effectiveness. 

4.) A printed copy of an updated Child Protection Policy document will be made available to 
parents, grandparents and other adults who bring children to the church and, to 
Ministry Teams who work with minors. 

Further Health and Safety Restrictions and Guidelines 

1.) If a child is not well enough to participate in the group or displays symptoms of contagious 
illness, the parent/guardian will be asked to take them home. 

2.) Ministry Team leaders will not give children medications. Exceptions will be reviewed on a case 
by case basis. 

3.) Ministry Teams will be advised, at least annually, as to the location of First Aid kits. Large First 
Aid kits that are attached to the walls are in Room 101; the large downstairs classroom across 
the corridor from the gymnasium and in the custodial closet in the Queen St. Entrance, foyer 
opposite The Welcome Circle/Chapel on the main level. These First Aid kits are to be 
maintained by a qualified server. Smaller, portable first aid kits will be stored on a high shelf in 
the photo-copier room and on a high shelf in the bathroom at the top of the back stairway on 
the Day Care level. 

4.) In the case of an incident, Ministry Team Members who witness the incident must complete a 
written incident report and file the report with a pastor. Incident report forms are kept in the 
photo-copier room. Incidents include any kind of accident or physical mishap such as a fall, a 
scrape, a cut, a bruise, two children hitting, kicking, or otherwise hurting or fighting with each 
other, a child running away from a Ministry Team Member or going missing even temporarily, 
etc. 

5.) Fire evacuation plans will be reviewed at least annually in Ministry Team Training. Specific 
evacuation directions will be posted in each room. 

I have read this policy and agree with it: 

Signature Date ------------------ ------------



TREASURER 

These financial statements reflect the financial activities of First Baptist Church for the year 2018. All 
monies received and expenses incurred have been recorded and all debts received have been paid. TC 
Jones has completed a Review Engagement. 

The year ended with a net income of $9,325. Expenses were up by approximately $11,600. Heating fuel 
and system repairs were $13,979 higher than 2017. Bus transportation was $6,248 less than 2017. 
Miscellaneous expense is up due to the $2,722 cost of an Automatic External Defibrillator (AED). I would 
like to thank the congregation for their continued support and help to bring us back into a stable financial 
position by year end. 

The present deposit at the Baptist Foundation stands at $99,865 of which $9,468 is the Florence Gardiner 
Estate to be used in a yearly $1,500 bursary, the Ruth Falconer Estate of $4,585 to be used for a yearly 
$1,000 bursary and the remainder in trusts that have specific instructions attached to them. 

The 2019 budget was has a $674 increase and was approved at the Fall Advance Meeting. 

Automatic Bank Withdrawal is available and many take advantage of this. Many of the church's expenses 
are fixed and consistent giving really helps us to meet the expenses even during times of low attendance 
(such as summer and storms). 

Thank you to Heather Burke and Mike Robart. Their help has made my job much easier. 

Linda Smith 

Treasurer 
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Gjones Chartered 
Professional 
Accountants 

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

To the Members of the Congregation of 
First Moncton United Baptist Church 

We have reviewed the current operating fund and capital fund balance sheets of First Moncton United 
Baptist Church as at December 31, 2018 and the statements of revenue, expenditure and surplus for the 
year then ended. Our review was made in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for 
review engagements and, accordingly, consisted primarily of inquiry, analytical procedures and discussion 
related to information supplied to us by the Church. 

A review does not constitute an audit and, consequently, we do not express an audit opinion on these 
financial statements. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial 
statements are not. in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-
profit organizations. 

TCJones Chartered Professional Accountants 

Coldbrook, Nova Scotia 
March 8, 2019 

t: (902) 3G5 3988 I f: (902) 36'.:i 399-1 I e: info@tcjones.ca 
54 Coldbrook Village Park Drive, Coldbrook, NS 84R 189 

tcjones.ca 



First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Balance Sheet 
Current Operating Fund 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 2018 2017 

Assets 

Cash $ 181,102 $ 148,721 
Receivables 5,630 4,910 
Prepaids 6,218 8,303 
Investments (Note 3) 99,865 146,544 

$ 292,815 $ 308,478 

Liabilities, Bequests, and Trust Funds 

Payables $ 36,922 $ 20,706 
Missions payable 18,550 18,550 
Payable to Capital Fund 
Trust funds 191,914 218,192 
Bequests: 

Boyer Estate 1,050 1,050 
Dora Duffy Mitton Estate 10,000 10,000 
Thordis Duffy Estate 1,000 1,000 
Winnifred Davis Estate 10,000 10,000 
Florence Gardiner Estate 9,468 10,621 
Ruth Falconer Estate 4,585 5,422 

283,489 295,541 

Surplus 

Current Operating Fund surplus 9,326 12,937 

$ 292,815 $ 308,478 

On behalf of the Congregation: 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures 
Current Operating Fund 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 2018 2018 2017 

Budget Actual Actual 

Revenue 
Envelopes 571,324 575,137 570,935 
Loose offering 12,500 11,869 12,616 
Easter 8,500 6,185 5,190 
Thanksgiving 9,500 5,189 5,957 
Christmas 18,000 12,360 17,370 
Anniversary 7,500 3,584 3,646 
Memorials 8,500 9,948 1,820 
Bequests 136,000 
Miscellaneous donations 1,255 562 
Investment income 3,000 3,357 2,251 
Use of facilities 1,500 904 1,475 
Recovery Miracles at First Daycare 15,000 13,080 13,082 
Refugees 

Total revenue 655,324 642,868 770,904 

Expenditures 

Pastoral ministries 
Salaries 223,300 220,399 224,558 
Annuity 10,414 10,414 10,103 
Allowances 7,520 5,363 6,345 
Honorariums 150 300 

241,234 236,326 241,306 

Worship and service 
Music ministry 9,660 8,653 9,287 
Anniversary 200 699 
Nursery/Childcare 320 280 120 
Offering envelopes 800 925 1,037 
Media, Communication, Website 6,450 4,269 5,120 
Ministry and service 1,700 2,196 2,033 
Flowers/decorating 600 1,664 981 
Welcoming 500 1,507 565 
Small Groups/ Fellowship Events 500 758 588 
Local Missions 5,300 131 702 
Internationals at First 200 
Leadership Development 2,500 2,513 3,850 
Technical Support/Equipment 2,500 1,127 
Visitation 400 
Worship leaders retreats 200 

$ 31,830 $ 24,023 $ 24,982 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures (Con't) 
Current Operating Fund 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 2018 2018 2017 

Budget Actual Actual 

Church property 
Capital and general repair 10,000 6,492 4,808 
Computer equipment 3,000 4,287 3,388 
Bus transportation 12,000 9,907 16,155 
Cleaning and maintenance 20,000 19,598 17,641 
Caretaker salary including temporary help 42,000 39,000 40,067 
Electricity 10,500 10,767 10,165 
Insurance 18,500 16,512 15,995 
Water and sewer 3,700 4,158 3,754 
Heating & System repairs 62,000 59,198 45,219 
Snow clearing 6,000 2,365 4,542 

187,700 172,284 161,734 

General and administrative 
Secretarial salary including temporary help 37,600 35,607 36,692 
Employee benefits 42,500 43,573 40,616 
Office supplies 10,000 12,411 12,313 
Postage 1,500 883 1,081 
Telephone 4,500 4,594 4,528 
Bank charges 3,000 4,552 3,000 
Miscellaneous 1,500 3,964 703 
Kitchen committee 500 141 71 
Association Fees 400 

101,500 105,725 99,004 

Christian education 26,560 28,385 24,391 

Missions 66,500 66,800 70,550 

Refugees 

Total expenditures 655,324 633,543 621,967 

Excess of revenue over expenditures 
(expenditures over revenue) $ $ 9,325 $ 148,937 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Statement of Surplus 
Current Operating Fund 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 

Surplus, beginning of year 

Allocation to general reserve (Note 6) 

Allocation to Babcock Trust 

Payment of capital debt 

Disbursements of 2017 surplus 

Excess of revenue over expenditures 

Surplus, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

$ 

$ 

2018 2017 

12,937 $ 38,842 

(4,312) (38,842) 

(71,804) 

(64,196) 

(8,624) 

9,325 148,937 

9,326 $ 12,937 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Balance Sheet 
Capital Fund 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 

Assets 

Receivable from Operating Fund 

Capital assets (Note 4) 

Capital Surplus 

Balance, beginning of year 

Excess of expenditures over revenues 

Purchase of capital assets through trust funds 

Repayment of debt through the operating fund 

Balance, end of year 

On behalf of the Congregation: 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

2018 

$ 

1,205,328 

$ 1,205,328 

1,197,380 

(56,773) 

64,721 

$ 1,205,328 

2017 

$ 

1,197,380 

$ 1,197,380 

1,180,913 

(47,729) 

64,196 

$1,197,380 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures 
Capital Fund 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 

Revenue 
Donations 

Total revenue 

Expenditures 
Interest on promissory note 
Amortization of capital assets 

Total expenditures 

Excess of expenditures over revenues 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

2018 
Actual 

56,773 

56,773 

$ (56,773) 

2017 
Actual 

13,411 

13,411 

4,994 
56,146 

61,140 

$ (47,729) 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Statement of Cash Flows 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Operating activities 
Cash received from donations 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employees 
Interest paid 

Investing activities 
Investment income 
Purchase of property and equipment 

Financing activities 
Repayment of debt 
Principal payment on promissory note 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 

Cash and cash equivalents, ending 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash 
Term deposits (Note 3) 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

2018 2017 

$ 721,095 
(325,036) 
(348,993) 

47,066 

3,357 
(64,721) 

(61,364) 

(14,298) 

295,265 

$ 280,967 

$ 181,102 
99,865 

$ 280,967 

$ 831,407 
(341,873) 
(352,038) 

(4,994) 

132,502 

2,251 

2,251 

64,196 
(87,855) 

(23,659) 

111,094 

184,171 

$ 295,265 

$ 148,721 
146,544 

$ 295,265 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Denominational and Mission Funds 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 2018 2018 2017 

Budget Actual Actual 

Expenditures 

CBAC Fund 46,500 46,500 52,000 

Westmorland Kent Association 
Association support 500 500 500 
Camp Wildwood 1,500 1,500 1,500 

2,000 2,000 2,000 

Canadian Baptist Ministries 
The Sharing Way 1,500 1,500 1,500 
Special Partners in Mission 4,000 4,000 4,000 

5,500 5,500 5,500 

Educational Institutions 
ADC Operating Fund 3,000 3,000 3,000 
Crandall University Operating Fund 3,000 3,000 3,000 

6,000 6,000 6,000 

Para-Church Organizations 
Pregnancy & Wellness Center of Moncton 750 750 750 
New Life Mission 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Inter Varsity Christian Fellowship 750 750 750 

3,500 3,500 3,500 
Scholarships 
W. Davis Memorial Scholarship 300 300 300 
Dr. Hinson West Memorial Scholarship 100 100 100 
Glendinning Memorial Scholarship 100 100 100 
D.D. Mitton Memorial Scholarship 600 600 600 
Flora Clarke Memorial Scholarship 150 150 150 
W. Davis Memorial Scholarship 300 300 

1,250 1,550 1,550 

Other 1,750 1,750 

66,500 66,800 70,550 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Trust Funds 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 2017 2018 2018 2018 

Balance Revenue Expenditures Balance 

Communion 
Benevolent Fund $ 10,560 $ 8,782 $ 11,187 $ 8,155 
Retired Ministers Fund 8,444 5,153 8,444 5,153 

Balance Communion Fund 19,004 13,935 19,631 $ 13,308 

Acadia Divinity College 50 50 
Babcock Trust 74,354 1,134 68,697 6,791 
Canadian Baptist Ministries 1,110 830 1,170 770 
Canadian Bible Socrety 30 30 
Choir Memorial Trust 9,656 1,070 10,726 
Christmas Wishes 25 25 
Crandall University 90 90 
Designated Donations 2,823 2,628 195 
Fash Trust 1,000 1,000 
Fellowship First Trust 1,051 1,051 
Fitch Trust 7,191 216 7,407 
General Reserve Fund 48,842 4.312 53,154 
Goat Project 442 296 440 298 
Handbell Choir 8,136 1,816 577 9,375 
Healy Trust 13,000 13,000 
I.V.C.F. 300 300 
Jeff Carter Support 20 20 
Karing Kitchen 
Music Trust 200 200 
Music Committee Trust 10,000 10,000 
New Life Mission 940 940 
Organ fund 5.800 26,540 32,340 
Parish Nursing Trust 400 400 
Pregnancy & Wellness Center of Moncton 100 100 
Renovation Trust 8,020 8,020 
Reserve for Musical Instruments 2,000 2,000 
Reserve for Repairs & Maintenance 9,866 9,866 
Roof Repair Fund 1,000 1,000 
Shawl Ministry 54 53 1 
Social action committee 378 378 
Soul Food Mission 99 99 
Sponsorship Ministry 928 300 1,228 
Sunday School 3,237 17 3,254 
UBWMU/ABW 12,963 11,283 1,680 
Wedding account Trust 1,140 720 420 
Youth Mission Tour 1,444 10,639 8,150 3,933 

$ 218,192 $ 88,606 $ 114,884 $ 191,914 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Supplementary Schedules to the Financial Statements 
Christian Education 
December 31, 2018 

(Unaudited) 2018 
Budget 2018 2017 

Sunday Morning Program 2,000 $ 1,914 $ 2,593 
Power House 1,000 724 1,074 
Youth Ministries 3,460 3,971 3,471 
Mission Trip 4,000 4,000 1,940 
Special Events 1,000 2,015 1,608 
Sports/Recreation/Camping 300 280 
Summer Students 3,000 4,725 1,724 
Summer Program 2,000 836 2,028 
Leadership 300 381 138 
Christian Camp Sponsorship 1,000 360 592 
Bible Presentations 588 
Crandall Youth Interns 4,000 4,000 3,000 
Wednesday Night Suppers 3,000 3,812 3,396 
Small Fellowship Group 211 90 
Young Adults 1,000 899 1,188 
Miracles At First 
Miscellaneous 500 537 681 

$ 26,560 $ 28,385 $ 24,391 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Current Operating and Capital Funds 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 

1. Nature of operations 

The organization operates a Church in Moncton, New Brunswick. The Church is a registered charity 
and is not subject to income taxes. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

(a) Fund accounting 
The Church follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions. 

The Current Operating Fund accounts for the Church's program delivery and administrative activities. 

The Capital Fund reports the assets, liabilities revenues and expenses related to the Church's capital 
assets. 

(b) Revenue recognition 
Contributions designated for current operating activities are recognized as revenue of the Current 
Operating Fund in the year received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably 
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

(c) Capital assets 
Fixed assets purchased in any given year are charged directly to the current operating fund 
expenditures if purchased with operating funds. Capital assets purchased with capital funds are 
recorded in the Capital Fund in the year the are incurred. 

Capital assets are recorded at cost. 

(d) Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported 
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(e) Investments 
The Church's investments are initially recognized at cost and subsequently measured at fair value 
without adjustments for transaction costs that would be incurred on disposal. Changes in fair value 
are in income in the period of change. Transaction costs associated with acquisition of these 
investments are recognized in net income in the period incurred. 

3. Investments 

Savings Deposit Certificates - Atlantic Baptist Foundation 99,865 146,544 

$ 99,865 $ 146,544 
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First Moncton United Baptist Church 
Current Operating and Capital Funds 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited) 

4. Capital assets 

Land 
Buildings 
Equipment 

5. Financial Instruments 

4%-5% 
20% 

229,248 
2,251,765 

963,879 

3,444,892 

Ace Depr 

1,404,331 
835,233 

2,239,564 

2018 2017 
NBV NBV 

229,248 229,248 
847,434 880,136 
128,646 87,997 

1,205,328 1,197,380 

The financial instruments of the Church and the nature of the risks to which it may be subject are as 
follows: 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the potential for loss arising from changes in interest rates. Financial instruments 
that potentially subject the Church to interest rate risk is the promissory note. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Church cannot repay its obligations when they become due to its 
creditors. The Church's level of exposure to liquidity risk is dependant on receipt of donations from the 
Church congregation, fund raising activities and other sources. 

6. Allocation to Repairs and Maintenance Reserve & to General Reserve 

At the annual meeting on February 23, 2015, the Church approved the allocation of funds in the amount 
of $14,613 from the accumulated operating surplus to the general repairs and maintenance reserve. At 
December 31, 2015, only $10,000 had been transferred. The additional $4,613 has been transferred 
at December 31, 2016. 

At the annual meeting on March 14, 2016, the Church approved the allocation of funds in the amount of 
$10,000 from the accumulated operating surplus to the general reserve. As of December 31, 2016. the 
funds have been transferred. 

At the church business meeting on February 4, 2017, the Church approved the allocation of funds in the 
amount of $38,842 from the accumulated operating surplus to the general reserve. 
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